Our fundamental

objective is to drive

the company’s growth.

7

We are building value through (\

x, global brand developmént,

\ an aggressive focus on accretive [
1 ; acquisitions, and strategies
|

| - to strengthen our

» leading market shares...

It’s working!
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Financial Highlights

Lo miillions of doflars, excefl fer sheow amounty

For the Years Ended December 31, 19908 1997 1996

Reported Results

|
Net Saies $1,781.2 $ 1,647.6 j 1,552.4
!
Income from Operations $ 279.7 $ 2154 § 187.4 '
|
Net Income Applicable to Common Stock § 1809 $ 150.0 § 30.1
llnderlving Results (As Adjusied for Unusual Frems) (
]
Income from Operations § 2437 $ 2154 _$l 2294
1
Net Income Applicable to Commen Stock § 162.2 $ 1305 $ 1153
Earnings Per Common Share (Diluted)

' As Reported $ 112 $ 92 $ 20
As Adjusted for Unusual Items $ 100 % 80 $ .71
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 2263 § 168.7 3| 165.4

Sales : Income {rom Net Income® Earnings
(8 billions) Operations™ 18 millions) Per Sharo*
(3 mifliony) 162 { Bituted) 100
229
L5
201 °
W 959G 97 98 O 95 on 97 U8 04 95 96 97 U8 94 95 94 97 ’9&’—

* Ax adjusted for unusual items

Corporate Profile

Johns Manville Corporation (NYSE: JM) is a leading manufacturer and marketer of premium quality insulation and building

products. The 141-year-old Denver-based company had sales of $1.8 billion in 1998, Johns Manville produces und markets

insulation products for buildings and equipment; commercial /industrial roofing systems: and engineered products
including high-cfficiency filtration media, and fibers, fabric and nonwoven mats used as reinforcements in building and
industrial applications. Johns Manville ecmploys approximately 9,200 people and operates 54 manufacturing facilities in

North America, Europe and China. Additional information can be found on the world wide web at www.jm.com,




BUILDING VALUE

-

Acquisitions significantly strengthen market shares
and our ability to serve customer end-markets.

I

The Manville Trust's investment in JM creates tax
deductions for the company’s U.S.-based business,

N

Balance shest management that includes improved
\ warking capital and lowar cost of financing.

GCperating efficiencies, new technologies, plant
consclidations and aggressive cost reduction
contribute to earnings growth.

Acquisitions move JM closer to a target for
international sales of 30 percent.

We are enhancing our leading market shares
{see back cover), principally in commercial/
industrial markets, through organic and
acquisition-driven growth.

Leveraging the strengths of the JM name -
a history of innovation, quality and customer
servige — in every market we serve.

/ Management is focused on our core
strategias for growth, and as shareholders

our interests are aligned with yours.

For JM, “building value” has a double meaning. By serving the needs of our customers,

we add value to their buildings and construction projects, and thereby build value for shareholders.

The building blocks of the value-building process include strengthening JM’s brand and leading
market shares, particularly in commercial and industrial markets. They also include accretive
acquisitions — 14 in the last three years representing approximately $700 million in revenue — that broaden
our capabilities to serve customer markets, worldwide, We continue to strengthen our management
team, reduce costs and improve productivity, and seek opportunities to utilize our unique ax asset.

It's working. Total shareholder return increased an average 27 percent per year over the last {ive years.

NV

Johns Manville




“Building value” is a phrase that may be overused to describe corporate
management intentions. For |M, though, it has a double meaning: by
adding value to buildings through the insulation, roofing systems or
engineered products we sell, we are also building value for shareholders.
If we do our job well in the former case, we will excel in the latter. In 1998,
JM made significant progress in increasing sales, earnings per share, cash
flow, margins, market shares and total shareholder return. That’s not to

say every business or every metric was improved or up to expectations or

potential. But we are meeting or exceeding the goals set two years ago — to

C.L.(ferry) Henry,  achieve a shareholder return of at least 15 percent on average through a cycle, We accomplished

Chairman, . . . . . .
Prosident nnd this while we strengthened JM's worldwide position in the customer markets and channels we
gjif{’f Executive serve, invesred in new technology, improved our safety record and grew the business.

[ficer

In 1998 we closed or announced seven acquisitions, bringing to 14 the total number of businesses,
representing approximately $700 million in annual revenue, acquired in the past three years. The
largest of these is the acquisition of the Spunbond/Monofilament business of Hoechst, completed
early in 1999. This $250 million business is a great strategic fit for JM, adding significantly to our
capabilities in Engineered Products and increasing our international presence in these global
markets {see charts this page). The other six acquisitions included: in Insulation, a calcium silicate
pipe insulation business and a fire protection joint venture; in Roofing Systems, an additional
thermoplastic membrane business and polyiso and perlite roof insulation businesses; and in
Engineered Products, an additional wall coverings business, Acquisitions must meet our rigorous

financial standard to be accretive in the first year, and thus far, all have met this criterion. Aequisitions have
allowed M o
significantly
increase ifs global
. . . i fresence, bringing
Sales increased eight percent in 1998, to $1.8 billion, driven by higher revenues in all three e company
business segments and volume increases in most of our businesses, but particularly in closer o its goal

Strong Gains in 1998 Results

of being 30%
JM’s building insulation business, which is currently operating at capacity. Continuing strength  international.
in residential and commercial new construction and remodeling markets, combined with higher
demand for insulation per unit, suggest that this business will remain robust in 1999, 1993

Roofing Systems also increased volumes, despite weatherrelated construction delays in
the first half of 1998 and competitive pricing pressures on some products. Acquisitions
that have broadened our already industry-leading product line contributed to these

results. We expect continued stable growth and better margins in this business in 1999.

Acquisitions also fueled sales gains in Engineered Products, though the largest of these —

1999
the Hoechst Spunbond business mentioned above — closed after year-end and is Estimated

Salas
therefore not included in 1998 results. For other Engineered Products businesses,
U.S. mats and fibers volumes increased dramatically, while international resulis and
filtradon suffered from weak Asian and Eastern European economies and competitive

pricing pressures, which are expected to begin to improve gradually during 1999,

B international
B North America




Underlying income from operations increased 13 percent to $243.7 million in 1998, with the
biggest increase also coming from improved Insulation volumes and stroing productivity gains.
Roofing Systems’ income from operations declined meodestly, with velume, productivity and
acquisition benefits offset by pricing pressures. And Engineered Products’ income from
operations declined slightly as the economic conditions and filtration market pressures cited
above more than offset strength in U.S. mats and fibers, and international wall coverings. Please
refer to the operations review section of this report, beginning on page eight, for more details

on business segment results.

Lower net interest expense from the company's debt refinancing and a share repurchase from  The compound

the Manville Trust that held JM’s tax rate to a level comparable to 1997 contributed to 1998 :;:?g;gggifw

results. This tax advantage arises from the Manville Trust’s investment in JM stock, which fohns Manville

earnings per
currently represents 79 percent of the 159 million shares outstanding. The value of sales of g ;i;;,m
JM stock by the Trust, as well as all dividends paid to the Trust, create tax deductions for the i ‘gggf;g’s

company’s U.S.-based business.

1.00

Underlying net income was $162.2 million, or $1.00 per share in 1998, up 24 percent from
$130.5 million, or $.80 per share in 1997, These results exclude unusual items, detailed in
the financial section of this report, beginning on page 14. Over the past five years,
the compound annual growth rate in underlying earnings per share was 38 percent  0.87

(see chart on right}.

improved Cash Flow and Total Return 0.20
JM’s cash flow continued to improve in 1998, with EBITDA (Farnings . :

(993 rov4 (995 1996 1997 (998
Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization) increasing to

Undarlying EPS
$374 million, up 26 percent from a strong gain in 1997. This reflects volume increases and CAGR 38%
significant productivity gains across our businesses, as well as a re-energized focus on investment

in new products, technologies and capacity that will drive future growth. Capital
expenditures totaled $106 million in 1998, and depreciation and amortization was $94 million

(see charts on page 14). With this strong cash flow, the Board of Directors approved a dividend

increase of 50 percentin 1998, o a $.24 per share annual rate.

A more aggressive commitment to working capital improvements — with further potential for 1999
and bevond — is part of JM’s effort to better utilize our balance sheet, which also included this
year's refinancing of 16%% Senior Notes, a move that will save approximately $16 million
annually. This debt restructuring allowed us to increase the amount we can prudently carry, while
lowering our cost significantly. Our total debt at year-end was $592 million, which represented
43 percent of total capital and reflected the deposit for our 1999 Hoechst Spunbond acquisition.
Our goal is to reduce debt leverage as we benefit from the strong cash flows of our existing

businesses and integrate recent acquisitions.
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At the end of the day, the ultimate measure of our ability to build
value is in shareholder total return, which includes both
dividends and share price changes. As noted, cur goal is to
achieve a 15 percent return to shareholders through a cycle, with
five years as a measurement period. Over the past five years,
JM’s total return has averaged 27 percent per year, better than our

target, compared to 24 percent per year for the Standard & Poor’s

JMs total return

has averaged
27% per year

over the past frve
years, belter than
the S&7P 500
and significantly
better than eur
Ppeer growp.

(S&P) 500 and nine percent per year for our peer group (see chart on left). In 1998, our total
return increased 65 percent, significantly better than our long-term goal and our peer group.
JM’s 1998 total return performance notwithstanding, we continue to believe that the 15 percent

long-term goal is appropriate.

The drive to build value also drove the January 25, 1999 announcement by JM and the Manville Trust
that we will undertake a review of strategic alternatives available to maximize |M’s shareholder value.
Such alternatives include the possible sale or merger of the company. The Trust is the majority
sharcholder in Johns Manville stock, and JM represents a significant portion of the Trust’s assets.
Since the Trust must eventually diversify its investments, we believe this is an opportune time to

consider our options.

Driving a Culture of Growth and Excellence

The cover of this annual report says that our fundamental objective is to drive JM’s growth.
It also describes our business strategies. The first is global brand development -~ having and
leveraging the powerful JM brand name and all it has stood for with customers and employees
for more than 141 years. The second is to make accretive acquisitions focused on broadening
our capabilities to serve end-markets worldwide. And the third is to strengthen our leading

market shares, which ultimately drive profitability.

Our focus continues to be on less cyclical commercial and industrial (C&I) markets, which
represented 75 percent of JM's total sales in 1998, up from 60 percent in 1993, with further gains
expected in 1999 (see chart on right) as we integrate recent acquisitions, Besides greater stability,
C&I markets appeal to JM hecause the dollars per square foot of product sold are b0 percent
higher than for residential markets. This C&I focus does not mean that we plan to
de-emphasize our large residential insulation business. In fact, we are supporting our fast-growing
ComfortTherm™ residential insulation business with television advertising for the first time in
more than 15 vears. Rather, the increasing percent of C&I sales reflects the fact that

our acquisitions have been and likely will continue to be Cé&lI businesses.

These strategies are all aimed at making JM the leading supplier in every
category we are in by offering our customers a complete product package,

along with the quality, reliability and tradition of service they expect.

[993 1995

We are the

#1 global
commercial/
industrial
building products
company and in
recent years have
increased our
participation in
these more stable,
higher-margin
markets.

{999

{997

W commercial/
Industrial /

[ Residential




We have made significant progress in implementing these strategies and resuming JM’s growth
over the past few vears and we still sce considerable opportunity, especially in international

markets, looking beyond the current economic turbulence.

These are the kinds of objectives and strategies that sharcholders expect to see and hold
management accountable for achieving. But I want to share with you a deeper sea change that is
occurring at JM today. After a decade of internal turmoijl, the likes of which has destroyed many
industrial enterprises, as a team - and I mean to include every JM employee — we are totally
focused on building JM’s prosperity and “core” value for the long term. Bringing back the
JM name has not only proved to be the right decision as measured by a significant increase in
brand awareness by our customers, but it has unleashed employee pride and confidence in the
future of the business. With improved growth and profitability has come the ability to invest in
R&D, now focused to a much greater extent on new technology and products to drive
future growth and market leadership. The Hoechst Spunhond acquistion adds to our
patent and technology portfolio and brings a culture of product quality and product

development that will build on our own efforts.

Part of this culture of excellence is our absolute commitment to improved safety over

the past two years. Our employees have significantly improved our safety record, with a
72 percent reduction in serious accidents over this period, and an employee-set goal of a further
50 percent reduction for 1999. I feel strongly that the discipline and attitude we apply to
improving safety, quality and environmental standards extends to our entire business supply

chain from raw materials purchase to ultimate delivery to our customers.

I hope you can see that for JM, building value has a great many building blocks, which we have
tried to depict in simple visual form on page one of this report, and T have tried to convey with
more depth and meaning in this letter. Ultimately, as with any organization, it comes down to
what our people can accomplish with a vision, confidence in their future and with high standards
by which to measure their progress and the company’s progress overall. My sincere thanks go to

all of JM’s 9,200 employees for your accomplishments in 1998 and commitments for 1999,

Sincerely,

C.L. (Jerry) Henry
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer

March b, 1999

M is focused

on the growth
areas of C&T
and residential
building markets.

1998 Market Drivera
Commercialf
Industrial: 75%

[ Repair/Re-roofing
 New Construction
W oEm

Residantial: 25%
[0 New Construction
. Repair/Remodel




Johns Manville At a Glance

Description : Contribution

IN S U L ATI O N The market for fiber glass insulation in North America

totals $2.8 biltion. Johns Manville holds the leading
market position for commercial/industrial applications.

Sales

In specialty insulation sold to original equipment
manufacturers (OEM}, Johns Manville holds the
No. | position in three markets: aerospace; auto;

and heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC)

Income from
Operations

equipment. JM is the second-largest manufacturer
of fiber glass insulation for residential applications.

RO O FI N G Johns Manville is the leading supplier of
ial/industrial roofing systerns in
SYSTE M S commercia

North America, which is a $3 billion market.

The company's Roofing Systems business, which
provides the broadest line of complete roofing

systems in the industry, includes: built-up, modified
bitumen and single-ply membranes; perlite, fiber

glass and polyisocyanurate insulatons; roofing Income from

. C . Operations
guarantees; and accessories. Acquisitions in recent
vears have expanded product lines and provided
substantial growth in this business.
ENGINE ERED Johns Manville is the No. 1 global supplier of e

PRO D U C TS base fiber, fiber glass and polyester spunbond

mat for roofing and flooring manufacturers.
In addidon, Johns Manville supplies fiber to
reinforce gypsum wallboard and plastics. JM is also

the worldwide leading provider of glass fabrics
for wall coverings. In filtration, Johns Manville

Income from

is a leading supplier of fiber glass media for Operations

high-efficiency air filtration systems. Ultrafine
fibers are also produced for specialty manufacturers
who supply filter manufacturers producing
HEPA/ULPA air filtration systems for clean rooms.




1998 Nighlights

Sales & Income from Operations (§mittions)

Qutiook

Sales up 55, income from operations up 36 %.
Volumes up 6% for the year

Impraving frricing, sold-out conditions
across most product lines and significant
productivily improvements fueled income gains.

JM launched its first television advertising

in more than 13 years for the fast-growing
ComfortTherm™ line; acquired and integrated
& calcium silicate and fireproof board plant;
and announced o joint venture lo manufacture
Firelemp™ fire stopping products that stop the
spread of smoke and fire.

Income

1996

1997

1998

Continued strong
housing and construction
markets that ere fueling
robust demand, an
improving pricing
environment and a focus
on efficiencies are
driving profit growth in
this business. A greater
focus on technology and
acquisitions that are
complementary to JM's
current offerings has
broadened the company's
Insulation product line.

Sales up 10%; income from operations down 5 %.
Volumes up 6 %.
Increases driven by acquisitions.

Increases from acquisitions offset by weathervelated
construction delays in the first half of the year,
pricing pressures and less favorable product mix.

Acquired an additional perlite board and pelyise
roof insulation business; acquired and integrated
an additional thermoplastic membrane company
into JM's Roofing Systems business.

Income

1996

1997

1998

Continued strong
commercialfindustrial
construction and
re-roofing markets,
combined with further
contributions from
recent acquisitions,
are driving growth in
the Roofing Systems
business. JM expects
to strangthen

market share as the
only supplier of

total roofing solutions
in North America.

Sales up 8 %; income from operations down 1%.
Volumes up 9-10%.

Strong performance in Novth American mals and
Sibers and acquisition-driven gains in Europe.

Filtration adversely affected by economic weakness
in Asian markets, and by pricing pressures.

Announced the acquisition of Hoechst's Spunbond
operations, which will add approximately
5250 million in annual revenue starting in 1999,

Strengthened [M's leading market share in glass
Jabric for wall coverings through an additional
acquisition.

Income

1996

1997

1998

The Hoechst Spunbond
acquisition will contribute
significant international
growth by broadening
JM’s praduct line.
Integrating acquisitions
snd recognizing synergies
across products and
technologies should
improve growth and
profitability. Strong
construction markets will
continue to fuel growth
in JM's North Amearican
businasses.
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A new housing
developrnent

in Santa
Barbara uses
Comfort Therm™
inswlation that
is easier (o
handle and
more comfortable
{o install than
conventional
Jiber glass batts
and rolls.

Leading Market Shares

For more than a century, Johns Manville
has been producing high-quality insulation
products that include building insulation
for residential and commercial building
applications, C&I mechanical insulations,
and OEM insulation products. JM markets
its insulation products to retailers; contractors;
manufactured housing producers; distributors;
fabricators; and original equipment
manufacturers.

Strong Volumes in Building Insulation

Johns Manville’s building insulation business
includes fiber glass insulation for residential
and commercial applications. Robust
construction markets in both sectors and
productivity gains drove increases in 1998.
JM experienced sold-out capacity throughout
most of the year, which increased volumes, but
created challenges for the company and its
ability to satisfy customers’ increasing demand.
Johns Manville has been adding capacity
judiciously in this area to meet these needs.

JM’s building insulation business generated
significant gains in 1998, due to improved
volumes as housing starts continued strong,
and lower interest rates fueled home
remodeling and renovation projects.
ComfortTherm;” JM’s fast-growing line of
encapsulated residential insulation, as well
as under-floor and sound control
insulation, drove volume gains in 1998,

JM has grown ComfortTherm™ into the
insulation of choice for numerous residential
contractors and do-ityourselfers {see photo
this page). In fact, in 1998, JM began airing
its first television advertising
in more than 15 years 100
for ComfortTherm/™
focused on the benefits
of ease of handling and
comfortable installation. a0

Commercial/Industrial Focus

JM is a leader in C&I insulation markets
including mechanical pipe, equipment and
air handling insulations. In 1998, increased
demand for these products generated
improved results and strengthened selling
prices in the business. Building on its leading
posidon in C&I insuladon, in January 1998,
JM completed the acquisition of a calcium
silicate pipe and block insulation and
fireproof board plant to strengthen its
industrial market position.

Also in 1998, JM announced a partnership
with Firestop Systems, Inc. to market a line of
fire protection products including a new line
of products under the Firetemp™ brand, that
can be used on new and existing buildings to
stop the spread of fires. These products, used
to seal holes around pipe and conduit, and
seams in walls, floors and ceilings, will be
sold through JM’s existing distribution
channels and compete in a fast-growing
market estimated at $150 million.

Strength in OEM Results

Johns Manville’s OEM markets include
HVAC, acoustical, appliance, flexible duct,
auto and aerospace insulations. 1998 was a
solid year for this business, as the company
experienced increased demand and stable
pricing in many OEM markets. JM has added
new capabilities and capacity to better
position itself in the OEM acoustical market.

Outlook for Growth

The outook for building insulaton is for
expected healthy volume gains and improved
selling prices in 1999, Demand in the
historically less volatile C&I segment will
continue to be driven by non-residential
construction markets and increased product
end-use specifications.

Building Ingulation
Price Index 199798

ol 1%

In 1998

JM rebounded
[from competitive
pricing presstires
that adversely
affected building
insulalion in
1997 and early
in 1998,




1998 Results -
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Commercial/Industrial Leader

Johns Manville’s Roofing Systems business,
founded as the HW. Johns Company in 1858,
has heen characterized by superior quality,
innovation and a complete roofing solutions
approach. JM markets its products to
building owners, architects, contractors and
distributors. As the only company to offer a
broad line of total roofing solutions, jM is
included in the specifications for 13 of the
15 largest retail chains in North America.

A JM built-up
roofing system
with @ 15-year
guarantee was
used to re-roof the
San Frantisco
City Hall. In cilies
across the globe,
JMs mofing
systemns are used
Jor @ variety

of structures
including
educalional
Sfucilities, velail
renlers,
entertainment
complexes arnd
commercial office
budldings.

Johns Manville roofing solutions include
membranes, roof insulations, accessories
and comprehensive roof guarantees.

Growth Through Acquisitions

The North American C&I roofing market is
stabie, growing approximately iwo-to-three
percent annually. Johns Manville’s growth
has exceeded the overall market growth as
a result of market share strengthening
acquisitions completed over the last three
years. Acquisition-driven increases and volume
gains were offset by slowness in the business in
the first half of the vear, due to weather-related
construction delays, and to competitive pricing
pressures in polyisocyanurate foam products.

Since 1996, Johns Manville completed and
integrated seven acquisitions in its Roofing
Systems business including three in 1998.
Acquisitions have grown the business, both
domestically and internationally; rounded
out JM’s product line and provided more
choices to customers; and enabled synergies
and product innovations across the business.

Euxpansion into Growth Markets
In late 1997 and early in 1998, the company
completed two acquisitions of roofing
businesses, which marked [M’s entry into the
thermoplastic membrane market. This is the
fastest growth area in the C&I roofing sector.
These products are attractive and functional,
and are popular in a variety of applications,
including retail facilities, office -
buildings, airport roofs and sports.
complexes. For example, |[M is
supplying the roofing system for the
Seattie Mariner’s new stadium,
currently under construction, and
provided the roofing system for
Bank One Bailpark in Phoenix.

In 1998, JM acquired a Canadian producer
of polyisocyanurate foam roof insulation
products for C&I construction, Late in 1998,
JM completed the acquisition of a perlite
insulation board manufacturer’s assets.
These acquisitions will strengthen JM’s
leadership position in C&I roofing, and
the company expects to realize significant
operating and transportation efficiencies
when they are fully integrated.

Outlook: Growth Through the
Integration of Acquisitions

JIM will focus on further integration benefits
from recent roofing acquisitions to drive
growth and profitabiiity. Continued high-level
activities in new C&I construction markets
and demand in the re-roofing market, with
particular emphasis on the institutional
segment (schools and government) will drive
continued growth in this business. Looking at
the longerterm cycles in the roofing industry,
a period of very strong activity in the
mid-1980s suggests that many of these
buildings wiil require re-roofing in the next
few years. Retrofit business represents
approximately 75-80 percent of the company’s
and the market’s total demand.

Johns Manville

s North America’s
leading C&s]
roofing
manufacturer
and offers the
Jull range of
rosfing products
and materials

shown here,

North American
Roofing Markat

B Singla Ply Products
{3 modified Bitumen
B sur

o Other Membranes
B cetlutar msulation
B Fibrous tnsulation
B Accessorles
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Expanding Product Lines

Engineered Products is a global business that
is divided into three principal product lines:
mats and fibers, glass fabrics and air filtration.
Mats and fibers products are used to reinforce
low-slope commercial roofs and residential
roofing shingles and paper machine
conveyors; to lend stability to carpet tiles and
vinyl flooring; and to reinforce plastics,
particuiarly for applications in the automotive
industry, and gypsum wallboard, JM’s fabrics

At the Musée
des Beaux-Aris
in Lyan, France,
JM's Microlith® —
glass fiber mat is
used to reinforce
the walls and
ceilings and to
lend stability fo
the building’s
structure,

business includes fiber glass wall fabric and
reinforcement tapes used for premium wall
coverings and reinforcement. JM also
produces high-efficiency air filiration media
for commercial buildings; and ultrafine
filiration fibers for clean rooms in the
electrenics and pharmaceutical industries
and a variety of other specialty applications.

1998 Besulss

JM’s mats and fibers products generated sales
growth in the U.S. and gained market share
worldwide, due to strong C&I construction
markets and increased volumes in the U.S.
Acquisition-related increases drove a slight
improvement in JM’s fabrics business as the
Mitex and Tasso acquisitions, completed in
1997 and 1998, respectively, were integrated
into the company. These acquisitions
expanded [M’s product line imo glass fabric
wall coverings, which have anu-microbial
properties ~ meaning they will not support
bacterial growth - and are flame resistant.
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Asian and Russian economic turbulence
adversely affected the Engineered Products
business in 1998. Filtration and European
mats and fibers and fabric businesses’
earnings declined due to halted business in
Russia and weakness in China, and to a
significant siowdown in clean room builds in
the semiconductor industry in Asia. JM
will continue to concentrate on product
development, and the company's businesses
should start showing significant improvement
when these markets begin their rebound.

Growth Through Acquisitions
Just after year-end, JM completed the purchase
of Hoechst’s Spunbond/Monofilament
business. This $250 million addition grows
Engineered Products’ business significantly
and provides reach into new international
markets. As a result of the acquisition, JM is
now the leading global fiber glass and
polyesier-based roofing substrate supplier.
The transaction also includes a strategic
altiance for the long-term supply of
raw materials providing JM with

a broad-based petrochemical supply

as well as a partner for product
development.

There are numerous opportunities
for synergies and new products as
the acquisition is integrated. The
combined business is focused
on C&I markets and offers
complementary products to a
similar customer base. Also, M is
now the only company in the
industry that produces both fiber
glass and synthetic mats for roofing
substrates, which creates opportunities
to leverage materials and technologies
to offer new products and better solutions
1o customers,

Dutlook: Asgimilation of
Acquisitions in 1999

The outlook for filtration is gradual
improvement through 1999, Mats and fibers
will focus on integrating and leveraging
the Hoechst Spunbond business, developing
new products for specialty applications and
improving productivity across the business.
Geographic expansion is expected to be
driven by increased sales of roofing, tlooring
and fabrics in Eastern Europe.

JM is the world’s
leading supplier
of roufing
substrates, both
[iber glass and
polyester-based,
used for
commercial and
industrial roofing
membranes.

Worldwide Rooting
Substrate Market
By Matarial

B Fiper Glass 55%
| Polyester 8%
W Fabric 1%

W other 35%

By Geography

B nosth America 55%
B Asia/Other 15%

0 western Europe 12%
1 eastem Europe 11%
M Russia 7%




Financial Review

Selected Five-Year Financial Data 15
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 17
Consolidated Balance Sheet 31
Consolidated Statement of iIncome and Comprehensive income 32r
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 33
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders® Equity 34
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 36
Management’s Report 61
Report of Independent Accountants 62
Selected @Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 63
Highlights
EBITDA Depreciation and Debt to Capital Capital Expenditures
(8 milfions) Amortization (%) ($ millions)

($ millions) 44

‘94 95 96 97 ‘58 ‘o4 95 ‘96 ‘97 ‘98 ‘94 ‘95 G5 97

Safe Harbor Statement

111

‘9 95 ‘96 ‘97 98

This report contains “forward-logking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform

Act of 1995, Statements of the Company contained in this repott concerning matters relating to the Gompany’s

financial results and its future operations constitute matters that are not historical facts (see page 29 for more

information on forward-looking statemnents). These statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could

cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in such statements. Important factors relating to

such risks and uncertainties are outlined in the Management's Discussion and Analysis section of this report.
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SELECTED FIVE-VEAR FINANCIAL DATA

b . —

. < g - In theusands of dollars, except per share amounts
" Year Ended December 31, ' - 1998 - 1997 - 1996 1995 1994
Income ] } . ) o . .
oo Net Sales (Note B) : T~ 8 1,781;]79 A $1,647,645 $1,552,429 $1,391,522 $1,277818
~ Income from Operations (Notes A, B and G) - 279,737 215,422 " 187,427 201,283 ’ 142,269
' Income from Condndﬁg Operations, - - K '
netof tax (Notes A, Band G) . - 185291 130,529 190,525 122,006 ' 55,606
Income before Extraordinary Items and ) ’ B ) - : : : .
. Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change (NoteB) 185,291 150,000 - 406,771 115995 ° 65,416
NetIncome (Notes B, D, Eand F) . - _ ' 180,946 150,000 . 90,486 115,995 © 36,996
+ Financial Position (As of Decémber 31) : .
Total Assets (Note C) . ' $2,207,185 $1.980,534  $1,946,726 $2474,059 $-2.317,498
Long-Term Debt, less current portion | : 587,276 . ' 456,204 428160 447,007 441,798
 Stockholders’ Equity o 790,108 603083 580462 1,181,307  -1,080.781
Additional Data (Notz B) _ o e o '
Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment $ 130336 .- $ 125296 $ 153,000 $ 111,320 % . 82,833
Research, Development and Engineering - 32,823 31,174 - 32,663 . . 29,988 29,738
Per Share Data (Nowe H) ' ' )
Eamnings Per Common Share -
Basic . | '
Income from Continuing Operations, g .
net of tax (Notes A, B and G) $1.16 $.8L $ 86 $.79 Y S
~ Income before Exu*qordinaxy Iterns and _ . . . m -
Cumulative Effect of Accounting _ . : : R s
Change (Note B) . - 1.16 93 2.29 74 33
T . NetIncome (Notes B, D, Eand F) " 1.13 - 93 20 74 10
o ‘ Diluted: o : o ' | ‘
_Income from Continuing Operations, ' . ' .
et of tax (Notes A, Band G) * T 115 80 .85 a8 25

Income before E:xuéofdinaxy’ltems and
Cumulative Effect of Accounting . : ] ‘
Change (Note B) 1.15 92 2.97 Cg3 © T 33

- NetIncome (Notes B, D, E and F 12 S92 20 73 .10
' Common DividendsPaid a8 13 6.03 o
~ ProForma Data (Note ] . ; ' o . . _
Income from Operations T $ 243,749 '$ 215422 § 229367 § 201283 § 142200
" . NetIncome - S ae2236 . 130,529 115,267 93,443 - 60,992
Eamings Per Common Share (Diluted): ) - ‘ ’ . .
N th Income o ; $1.00 - - %80 - | $57 . $.37 =
Secnotes on page 16+~ o . ' '

#
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SELECTED FIVE-YEAR EINANCIAL DATA T

Notes to Selected Five-Year Financial Data; -~ (D) In 1996, the Co'vnpkmy recorded an extraordinary loss of -

. $314.3 million, net of taxes of $169.2 million, on the exchange of
(A) During 1996, the Co;npany recorded nontecurring charges approncimately 32.5 mitlion shares of the Company’s common stock
totaling $49.2 iillion. These chargss icluded $41.7 million for ~for the termination of the Manvills Persoal Injury Settlewint
? the shutdown of current operations, demaolition éf facilities and : Trust’s profit sharing right to 20 percent of the Company’s net ‘ T
) " site restoration and $7.5 million of asset writedouns to estimated earnings (as adjusted). N
. . fair values, partially offset by a gain on the sale of other . . ) ‘ ) .
S manufacturing assets: | . . ) - (E) The Company recorded extraordinary losses on early .
o _ : tinguishments of deb, net of taes, of §31.8 million, 82 million
(B} In the first quarter of 1996, the Company disposed of its o ~ and $28.4 million in 1998, 1996 and 1994, respectively. -
81.3 pervent interest in Riverwood International Corporation ' o - o :
{“Riverwood”). Accordingly, Riverwood s operations have been " (F)Effective january 1, 1998, the Company changed its method
reflected as discontinued operations and its operating resulls have of accounting for glass furnace rebuild costs. -Thé cumulative -
been excluded from the deteriination’ of income frr)ml contiming effect of this change in accounting principle increased 1998 | ¥
operations for all periods presented. Income from continuing . earnings by $27.4 million, net of taxes of $17.9 million.
' _ aperations, net of tax, inchudes gains on sales of equity ' 7 _ .. . - ‘,
. " investments, i;items.t income, interest expense and pmﬁt sharing . (G) The bmnpany sold its five percent net smelter royalty on
) expense. Income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect ~ certain metals produced by the Stillwater Mining Company for
qracmunmg change and net income include a gain on disposal 1 cash resulting in other income of 836 million in April 1998.
afdzscontmugd operations of $216.2 million, net of tax, in - - a ! : . ’ '
1996 and a loss on disposal of discontinued operations of (H) During 1996, the Company redeemed its Cumulative
$42.5 million, net of tax, in 1995, : Preference Stock, Series B, Earnings per share amounis prior to
. o . . : 1997 were calculated after the deduction for preference stock .-
During the third quarter of 1997, the Coinpany recognized an’ - " dividends/aceretion and the §52. 1. million fremium on preference
additional net gain on. disposal of discontinwed operations of stock redemptim- : o
Riverwood of $19.5 million, of which $8.2 million related to o Co .
income taxes. : . ol s (I)Hofmmdamhmbmad]mmdtodzmmtetheeﬁedsof '
; . T . nonrecuriing ch{ngas mstrwmnng of operations, certain }'mwon
: " (C) Total assets at December 31, 1998 include the , plan settlement gains, gains on sales of equity investments, , mining
acquisition deposit of $227.3 million for the january L1 999 N royalty sale proceeds, intevest expense on the 9 percent Sinking Fund
- o Spunbond/Momﬁlamt Pun':hase Jfrom Hoechst. - Debentures, profit sktm'ngwcpmse an unusual 1996 income tax
. ) z!em, discontinued qﬁemtwm mramdmmy losses, cumudative effect
The net assets and liabilities of the discmitinued opmm . qf accounting change, preference stock dividends/accretion and
s qumemaodhawbmdamﬁadasmmhehifmmlear ’ }'Jmmumonpnfnmcszckmdmpm on a consistent basis and .
» Dacemberﬂ 1995 cmd 1994 “totaling $375.6 mzllzon a:nd . ’ adjusted for estimated a}.'#?hcabl?tax z_?ﬂem In addition, earnings
B $409.6 million, respectively. S " per share are based on 161.9 million diluted weighted average shares
) o Jor 1998 and 163.1 ﬂulhanpmfmm dzluhfimgﬁtedavemge

shares for the other periods presented.

.

I3 I . . - ~
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. MANAGEMENT'S'DISCUSSIDN AND AN—A_lYSIS

Y

Management's Discussion and Analysis of - The Insulation segment consists of the Company’s
Financial Condition and Results of Operations - . ’ building insulation business, which manufactures

fiber glass wool insulition for walls, attics and floors

Johns Manville Corporation (thf:‘:Compan)f') manufactures
and markets building and equipment insulation, .

in residential and commercial buiIdings and '
polylsocyanurdte foam sheathmg for res1denual stmclures, .
commercial/industrial roofing systems, high-éfﬁciency _ . commercnal/ industrial insulatiori business, which

filtration media, and fibers and nonwoven mats used as manufactures pipe and duct insulation for use in

- reinforcements in building and industrial applications. commercial buildings, factories, refineries and other -

The Company operates 54 manufacturing facilities in - industrial applications; and original equipment

North Ameri¢a, Europe and China, and is comprised of manufacturers (“OEM”) insulation business, which

. three principal business segments: Insulation, Roofing manufactures thermal and acoustic insulation for mrcraft,

manne vessels automobiles and hﬁaung, venulaung and

]

Systems and Engineered Products.

air condmonmg (“HVAC?) and other equipment.

The Rooﬁng Systéms segment consists of the Company’s

commercial/ industrial roofing systems business, which . .
) - supplies builtup, modified bitumen-and single-ply
s ’ ~ membranes; perlite, fiber glass and polifisocya.nuréte'
insulations; roof guarantees; and accessories. .

’
-

* The Engineered Products segment consists of the Y e '
Compariy’s mats and fibers business, which ‘ma;nﬁfacmres : m .
continuous filament fiber glass-based products used for - '

* . reinforcing roofing, flooring, wall €overing and plastic

. ) ] . broducts. The mars and fibers business includes the

: T _ Company’s German subsidiary; Schuller GmbH, and the -

‘ l Company’s European fabrics businesses. The Engineered .

Products seé‘mem also includes the Company's filiration
S bl:lSinf.‘SS, which manufactures filoation media for
N . : + commercial and industrial buildings; ultra-fine ﬁbei's"for
' _ clean room air filters and battery separators; liquid
. : i N - o Fltration cartridges and media for use-In commercial and
. ’ ) industrial applicagons; and synthetc meltblown products '

used in various other applications.

~o. Consistent with the Company’s internal r.e;')()rting, business
segments discussed below include allocated cori)orate '
- expenses. The 1998 mining royalty sale proceeds, certain
' - . ‘nonrecurring charges and a pension settlement gain related
to 1996, are reported in corporate and eliminations.

v




< MANAGENENT'S DISEUSSION AND ANALYSS
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1998 vs 1997 ' ) , Roofing Systems Segmént
Results of Operations o - Net sales for the Roofing Systerns segment increased. Co.
- X $51.3 million, or 10.1 percent, to $561.8 million for 1998
.. The Company’s net sales for 1998 increased - compared with $510.5 million in 1997 ('li_le primarily to | '
- $133.6 million, or 8.1 percent, to $1,781.2 million - » incremental volume increases from the recent )

7 compared with $1, 647.6 million for 1997, Gross profit thermoplasﬁc h‘nembra.ne acquisiions. Excluding the
increased $45.7 million to $477.2 million from ) . - impact of acquisitions, net sales increased slightly for 1998
$431.5 million. The. gross profit margin for 1998 mcreased compared with 1997, Income from’ operations; however,

. 1o 26.8 percent from 26.2 percent due to volume and " . decreased to $48 million from $50.5 million for 1998
productivity gains across all segments, partiz-illy offset by- * compared with’ 1997 Volume gains in 1998 were parnally -
' increased fixed costs and pricing declines in thf; mas - offset by pncmg pressures in poly'lsocyanurate foamn,
and fibers and fi liradon businesses. Selling, general, * products, a less favorable product mix and acquisition-
administrative and research, df:velopment d.ﬂd ' related costs, Inaddition, adverse weather conditions early
engineering expenses combined, mcreased $17 6 million, in the year limited roofing activity and shipments, and 4
,.or86 percent, to $223.4 million and were flatasa - negatively affected 1998 operating margins.
_percentage of sales at12.5 percent comparf.‘d with 1997 . ' '
Other income was  $95.9 mllhon for 1998 compared with Engineered Products Segment
. _other expense of $10.3 million for 1997. Other i income for The Engi neered Products segment’s net sales increased
1998 included proceeds of $36 million from a mining’ © $38.1 million, or 8 percent, to $514.1 mil}ioh for 1998 _n
royalty s;]e. Exclusive of the mining royalty sale proceeds, compared with $476 million in 1997. Income from l
income from operatiohs for 1998 was $243.7 milhc;n, up’ - opexalidns decreased slight]y to $77.7 million from
“13.1 percent, comparéd with $215.4 million for 1997. © %783 million for the same periods. The sales increases are

‘ primarily due to the May 1997 acquisition of Mitex and
Insulation Segment

»

the May 1998 acquisition of Tasso AB, both European

The Insulation segment's net sales increased ' manufacturers of fiber glass wall covering fabrics.
) $36.3 million, or 5.2 percent, to $734.1 miltion for 1998 However, 1998 sales and operaﬁﬁg income were -

compared with $697.8 ml]hon in 1997. Income from ~ adversely affected by slower economic activity in Asia
operations increased $31.4 million, or 36.3 percent, o - and Russia. Volume iﬁcreases in the U.S. mats and fibers

. $118 million comiaared with $86.6 million in 1997. The 1998 o business were partially offset by t}_n'e aforementioned
results for building insulation reflect volume increases due to - weathérrelated declines in roofing mat shipments and -
strong demand, improved operatmg elfﬁmencnes and an “lower selling prices during 1998. Results in filtration
improved pricing emvironment which began in the lateer half decreased for 1998 due to lower selling prices and a ‘

* ofthe year. While commercial/industrial insulation ‘ - worldwide slowdown in clean room builds. ’

businesses reflected moderately higher sales volumes and -
selling prices for pipe and equipment insulation, gross Other Income (Expense), net

p margins and operating income were negatively impacted by The Company sold its five percent net smelter royalty . -

) downtime for equipment upgrades during 1998. Alsoin ' on certain metals produced by the Stillwater Mining *

1998, the use of alternate materials resulted in significantly =~ Company for cash resuling in other income of
lower sales and margins in automotive products. $36 million in April 1998 -

]

.
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" interest :
Compared with 1997, the Company’s interest income
decreased $3.8 million due to lower average cash and

marketable securiﬁes‘balances:

The Company's interest expense decreased $14.3 million

for 1998 compared with 1997 primanly due to the - -

repurchase of substanually all of the Company s

$400 million of 10.875 percent Senior Notes due 2004

(the “Senior Notes”) ih May 1998 1;si1’_1g revolving credit

~ facilities with ;igniﬁcantjy lower interest rates. Also during
1998, the Company used available cash to repay borrowmgs
under the revolvmg creditfacilities.

Income Taxes

The Compaﬁy’s effective tax rate was approximately

26 percént in 1998 and 1997. The Cdmpa.niz receives a tax
deduction and a related reduction in its effective tax rate
when the Manville Personal Injury Sertlement Trust

(the “Trust”) pays claimarits or makes distributions to a
specific scttlf:l.nent,fundkfrom dividends paid on, or
proceeds received from dispositicn of, Company stock
held by the Trust. The Cbmpany benefited from such
distribudon of dividend and stock sale proceeds to th‘e
setflement fund and from the vitilization of fax credits.

Discontinued Operations
During 1997, the Company adjusted the esumated gain
recognized in 1996 on the disposition of Riverwood .
International Corporation (“Riverwood”). The
adjustment, rpsulﬁng in an ad‘diaional net gain on
" disposal of discontinued operations of $19.5 million, -
of which $8.2 million related 10 income taxes, arose
" from the termination of certain indemnificadon -
obligations to the purchaser of Riverwood and from
the determination of certain income tax consequences

of the disposition, which were finalized with the

. completion of the Compahy_’s 1996 income tax returns,

-

Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt .
In May 1998, the Company repurchased, through a cash

tender offer, substantially all of its $400 million of . '

10.875 percent Senior Notes. This transaction resulted in
an extmordina.i’y loss on_ the early extinguishment of debt
of $31.8 million, net of taxes of $18.1 million. ‘ ~

Cum'ulqtivé Effect of Accounting Change
Effective January 1, 1998, the Company-changed its

method of accounting for glass furnace rébuild costs to

the capitalization method from the allowance method.

The cumulative effect of this change in accounting
principle increased 1998 earnings by $27.4 million, net of
taxes of $17.9 million. This change resulted in an increase

in depreciation expense but eliminated the provision for

furnace rebuilds. The pro forma efféct of this change on

. net income was not materal.

Eamings Per Common Share

Basic and diluted net earnings per common share for, 1998
were $1.13 and $1.12, respectively, as compared with basic
and diluted net earmngs per common share of $0.93 and
$0.92, respecuvely, for 1997. The extmordmary loss on
early exungulshment of debi decreased basic and diluted

" earnings per common share by $0.20 durmg 1998.

The CumlﬂallVﬁ effect of a change in accounting increased
basic and diluted earnings per common share by- l
$0.17 during 1998. Gain on disposal of discontinued
operations increased basic and diluted earnings p;:r
common share by $0.12 diring 1997. - .

Johns Manville/19 _ ' .
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1997 vs 1996
' ‘Results of Operations

The Company’s net‘sales- for 1997 increased
. $95.2 million, or 6.1 percent, to $1,647.6 million from
.- $1,552.4 million in 1996. Gross profit of $431 5 million
for 1997, decreased $9. 1 million, or 2.1 percent, from
$440.6 million in 1996. The gross profit percentage
declined 2.2 percentage poinits to 26.2 percent for
1997 due to Jower selling prices. Selling, general,
\administrative and feseareh, developmem and | -
engineering expenses, combined, increased $2.1 million
to $205.7'mi]1i0n. These expenses, however, decreased
. asapercentage of salesin 1997 10 12.5 percent,
. - ’ compared with'13.1° percent in 1996. Income from
' oper.mons for 1997 was $215.4 million, up 14.9 percem
compared w1th $187.4 million for 1996. Income from
~operations during 1996 included noﬁrecﬁrﬁng
charges totaling $49.2 million.
° "
insulation Segment
] The‘In's_ulatiOn segment’s net sales remained essentially
© unchanged at $697.8 million for 1997, Income from
operations for this segment decreased $6.3 million,
or 6.8 percent, to $86.6 million for 1997 from .
$:9_2.9 million for 1996, which included $17.6 million
. . of nonrecurring charges. During 1997, capaeity—reiateq
selling price and other competitive pressures reduced
- net sales and led to lower margins and a decrease in -
~  operating income for the residential insulation business
compared w1l;h 1996. The selling price decreases,
averaging seven-to-eight percent, were partially offset-by
yolume incfeases due_to strength in U.S. construction
’ . markets. The comf}]ercial/indugui;il insulation business,
driven primarily by pipe and duct insulations, * =
experienced higher 1997 net sales and operating income
on volume increases, while lower selling prices led .
slightly decreased margins compared with 1996. Despite
. - lower 1997 net sales in automotive products prin;arily
due to the disposition of the Cdmpany's molded parts
business, ope_ré.ﬁng income for OEM insulation increased
for 1997 compared with 1996, reflecting strength in
aerosPéce and other specialty insulations, -

broadened product lines from acquisitions, partially

. 1mproved productmty

Roo—fi‘ng' Systems Segment

8

The Roofing Systems segment s net sales increased
$96 5 million, or 23.3 percent, to $510.5 million in

1997 compared with $414 million in 1996. The higher

sales were primarily due to increased volumes and

- offset by unfavbfal?le‘product mix. Operating income '
“increased $28.8. million to $50.5 million in'1997,

reflécting strong margins when compared with

$21.7 million for 1996, which included $5:6 million
of nonrecurring tharges. These increases reflected .
the effee{ive integration of acquisitions, favorable raw

materlal COStS, h1gher roof guaramee earnmgs and

Engineéred Products Se’grﬁent'

The F_ngmeered Products segment’s net sales increased

$5.2 mllllon to $476 million for 1997 compared with

$470.§ million in 1996. Income from operations

decreased to $78.3 x\nillion, or 18.1 percenf, compared

with $95.6 million in 1996, which included $4 million .
of income related to nonrecurring items. Net sales and
operating income for the U.S. mats and fibers business
decreased in 1997 as .redueed costs were more than

offset by declining volumes and selllng prices due to

ompetmve pressures. Strong lmprovements on higher *

sales volumes for the segment’s European operations,
including the incremental impacts of the Mitex
acquisition, were partially offset by unfavorable currency
comparisons on reported r|e$ults. Net sales _fer the
filtration biisiness increased for 1997 on higher ' ' -
volumes due to recent acquisitions in the synthetic T

filtration media markéts. These improvements in

filtration were offset by comperjtive pricing pressures

a_lid higher acquisition-related costs which led to p -

decreased margins and dperating income for 1997.

 Johns Manville/20 ' : , Y




’ Nonrecurrmg Charges

In 1996, the Company recorded the follomng pretax
[

nonrecurnng charges tot?lmg $49.2 million.

The Company completed an evaluation of a ma,nilﬁicnuing
facility with both current and former operations and

" determined that its best course of action was closure of the
facility. Consequently, the Company recorded nonrecuTing

", charges of $41.7 million for the shurdown of ciirrent

. operations, demolition of faciliges and site restoration, of
" which $30 million, $6.1 million and $5.6 million related to
corporate and eliminations, the Insulation segment and the
) Roc_)ﬁng Systems segment, respeétively. Of these charges,
$7.5 miillion were noncash asset writerdowns. At
December 31, 1998, $12 million qf It.he remaining ]iabiﬁty of
$37.3 million was classified as other currentliabiliges. Upon,

] compleu'on of these actions, the Company intends to dispose .

of the remaining properties and does not expect to ncur

_ significant future monitoring and maintenance costs. The
Company expects to fund the charges requiring cash outlys -
from available cash balances and cash generated from
operations. Pending federal and state regulatory agency
approval, the final demolition is expected to begin in 1999
and is expected to be mbstantlally completed by 2000, with *
the majority of liabilities settled during that time frame. Due
in part to delays in obmaining these approvale, the Company

spent minimal amounts in preparation for demolition phasesr

of the project durmg 1998. The 1 nonrecurnng charges are
based on estimates and, thercfore, are subJect to risks and
uncertainties related to the Company's ability to secure
agreements with third parties, relmqulsh the properties and
obain regulatory approvals to execute the actions described
~above. As a result, the Company behmes itis reasonably
possible that these estimates may be rewsed in the neartenm.

However, the impacits of such revisions, if any, are not.

.

expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s

" financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

The Company also ;'_ecdrded 1996 nonrecurring charges
(income) in the Insulation and Engineered ;E'roducts
segmems‘o‘f $1i.5 million and $(4) million, respectively,
consisting primarily of asset write-downs to estimated fair

. valuesiin the giutomoﬁve molded parts business, which was
disposed of in 1997, and a gam on the sale of other

manufactiring assets.

Other Expense, net
Other expense, net, was $10 3 million for 1997 compared

with $0.3 million for 1996. During 1997, other expense, .

+ net, included higher goodwill amortization, reflecting
a full year of expense related to 1996 acquisitions, in '
.addition to expense related to 1997 acquisitions, Qther
expense, net, for 1996 included a $7.2 million gain on

. the settlemerit of certain pension plans. "~
1 . M N . - . ’ i

’ interest . -
Compared with 1996, tiie Company’s interest income
decreased $8.6 million prlmanly due to lower average

cash and marketable securities balances,

\
‘D_UI‘i!Tlg 1997, the Company’s interest expense increased
$2 million due primarily 1o 1997 acquisition-related

borrowings. . \

Income Taxes -

The Cornpany s 1997 eﬂ”eclwe income tax rate of .

26 percent is lower than the U.S. federal statutory tax
‘Tate primarily due to the impact of {mlizing prior-
)}earS". tax credits end. the tax benefit the Company
receives on its quarterly dividend. For the\year ended
December 31, 1996, the Company reported a net
income tax beneﬁt of $29.1 mﬂllon which included a
$104.5 million tax benefit on the portion of the specml
cash dividend that was pald to the Trust. Exclusive of
the tax benefit-on the special cash dividend; the
Company's effective tax rate on income from
'eonﬂnuing ()perati‘ons,was 43 percent for the year
ended December 31, 1996. This rate is higher than the
U.S. federal statutory tax rate principally due to higher

foreign effective tax rates and state taxes.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIDN AKD AWALYSIS o

‘ . . - - ) R

Discontinued Operations ~ Earnings Per Common Share
) During 1997, the Company recognized an additional - Basic and diluted net éarnings per commeon share for
$19.5 million net gain related to the 1996 disposal of the 1997 were $0.93 and $0.92, respectively, as comparéd
~  discontinued operations of Riverwood International with basic and diluted net earnings per common share
Corporation. : L of $0.20-.for 1996. Gain on disposal of discontinued ",
’ . . . . ~operations increased basic and diluted earnixigs per
During 1996, the Companly received gross cash common share by $0.12 during 1997 and increased
- proceeds of $1.08 bi]]fon from the disposition of its - . basic and diluted earnings per common share by .
' “81.3 percent interest in Riverwood and recorded a gain . $1.43 and-'$;1..4‘2, respectiifely, during 1996, The
- of $216.2 million, net of taxes of $138.7 million. combined cxtra(;rdinary losses-on trust settlement
o o 0 and early extinguishment of debt decreased 1996 o
Extraordinary Losses ’ o basic and diluted ez;\rnings per common share by
During 1996, the Company exchariged apprommately $2.09 and $2.07, respectively. - )

32.5 million shares of its common stock for the Trust's . -
profit sharil;g right to 20 percent of the Company’s Liquidity and (_:épital Resources '
net earnings (as adjusted). As a result, the Company - T .

recorded an extraordinary loss of $314.3 mllhon net

of taxes of $169.2 mnlhon

- The Company broadly defines liquidity as the ability
to generate sufficient cash flow to satisfy 0peratlng

- . : requirements, ﬁmd capital expenditures and meet existing
Also during 1996, the Company redeemed its 9 percent

~ -Sinking Fund Debentures with cash of $27.7 millio:;,

plus accrued interest of $1.6 million, resulting in an

obligations and commltmcms In addition, hqmdltv also
includes the ability to obtam appropriate ﬁnancmg and

convert into cash those assets that are no longcr required

- . . exturaordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt of to meet the Company’s straregic objectives. Therefore

$2 million, net of taxes of $1.1 million. Tiquidity should not be considered separately from capital
resources, which consist of currently or potentially

Preference Stock Redemption available fimds for use in achieving Jong-range business

The Company redeemed its Cumulative Preference objectives and meeting debt service commitments.

Stock, Series B (the "preferencc stock”), with cash of
B $230.8 million during 1996. The prcmlum or. excess The Company's agreements with its lenders contain

_of the redempuon price over the carrying value of the " Fnancial and general covenants. These include among

preference stock,-of $52.1 million was charged directly other things, limitations on borrowings, investments and

to capital in excess of par value and, along with assct dispositions and maintenance of various financial

.preference stock dividends, was deducted from net ratios. Noncompliance with these or other covenants, or -

income to compute earmngs and earnings per share - the occurrence of any other event of default, could result

zpphcable to common stockholders during 1996 in the termination of existing credit agreeménts and the
- acceleration of debt owed by the Company and its
subsidiaries. At December 31, 1998, the Company was

in compliance with these covenants.
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The Company’s cash and marketable sccﬁritieé balances
decreased $152.6 million during 1998 to $16.5 miliion
at December 31, 1998, from $169.1 million at
December 31, 1997. At December 31, 1998, cash and
marketable securities located outside the U.S. and
Canada were $12.8 miilion. In conjunct\on with the
tender offer discussed in “1998 w 1997 Results of
Operations - Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment
of Debt,” the Company arranged unsecured muiticurrency
revolving credit facilities (the “credit facilitie-s") totaling
approxifnately $750 million at a floating interest rate
of LIBOR plus an additional margin, with an initial
t.ernllinau'on date of May 15, 2003. The Company used
$450 million of the credit facilities to repurchase the
Semior Notes, At December 51, 1998, $550 million of
borromngs under the credit facilities were outstandmg
The remaining crednt faciliges are available for fundmg
acquisitions and capna.l expendltures, and other corporate

' pu.rposc::s. The Company also canceled its $100 miilion
receivables sale facility and its $75 million revolving line
of credit avaitable to mtermational subsidiaries. The
Company’s‘intemational subsidiaries had additional

7 botrowing and working capital facilities totaling
$13.3 million, of which $9.7 million was available at
December 31, 1998. These facilities are pnncrpally secured
by the Comipany’s equity ownership in certain

‘international subsidiaries and joint ventures.

*The Compa.ny s net operating activities provided
$226.3 million of cash during 1998, compared with
$168.7 million for 1997. The Company’s cash flows from
oﬁer'a‘tjhg activities are pririlan'ly influenced by sales
volume and selling prices. As discussed in “Results of
_Operations,” the effecis of increased sales volumes were
parUally offset by lower Sellmg prices experienced durmg
the first half of 1998. During 1998, operaung activities also
] included the mining royalty sale gain, offset by the loss
from the early extingujshmcntlof thf:—Senio‘r Notes. The
Company expects operating results to continue to benefit
" from the integration of acquisitions. Recent price
improvements are expected o continue to benefit the
~ building insulation business, Meanivhile, slow economic
- activity in Asia and Russia may continue to impact rf:sults;_
in the Engineered Products segment. In a;idiu'ox}, 1999
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. results of operations will be affected by 1998 interest rate
« declines and equity market volatility, which will negativety

+1998 and $213.4 million during 1997. Investing activities

impact the Company’s pension expense (income).
However, this is not expected to impact the Company's
pension plan cash mﬁding requirements.

The Company’s investing activities used $391.1 million in -

for 1998 used $92.2 million for acquisiions, net of cash
acquired, and $106.4 million for capital experiditures. In
addition,‘ 1998 investing activities include the Company’s
$227.3 million deposit for the Spunbond /Monofilament
acquisiﬁon completed in 1999. The 1998 capital
expenditures ncluded approxxmately $46 million re]aled
to capacity expansion pro_]ects Cash used in mvestmg
activities for 1997 inchuded acquisitions of $136.5 million,

- net of cash acquired, and capital expendimires totaling

$90.5 million, of which approximately $50 million related ) .
to capacity expansion projects. Investing activities for 1997 '

. also’includéd proceeds from the disposition of the’

Company’s automotive molded parts business.

The Company’s financing activities for 1998 consisted of
issuarices of debt totaling $599.6 million, net, and
repayments of debt tot.a]iﬁg $469.9 million, relating”
pﬁinarily;o the December 1998 deposit for the
Spunbond/Monofilament acquisition and the May 1998,
Senior Note repurchase. In adchtiori, the Company - N
purchased 3.6 million shares of its common stock from the .
Trust at $13 per share and, accordingl};, recogmized treasary
stock, 2:!1 cost, of $46.8 million in 1998. The Company paid
quarterly dividends totaling $28.8 MMon and $21 million
during 1998 and 1997, respectively. During the third quarter
of 1998, the Company increased the quarterly dividend rate
from $0.04 to $0.06 per share, paid in'the fourth quarter.
During 1997, the Company repaid debt totaling

$30 million assumed in connection with 1996 acquisin'on.ls.
The Company also borrowed $55 million from internationial
credit facilities to partially finance 1997 acquisitions, of

¥ .

" which'$10 million was repaid in 1997. The remainder was

repaid in 1998.

.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIDN AND ANALYSIS. T

N . -

The Company believes that its Cin‘rent cash posiﬁon, ) As of December 31, 1998, the Company will need a

‘funds available under credit facilities and cash generated ) cumulative total of approximately $570 ‘million of
© from opella;jons will enable it 1o satisfy its debt service U.S. federal taxable income to realize its net U.S. deferred -
A requirements, its’ongo'ing‘capi;a] ‘expansion program and  tax asset of $198.4 million, Based on the Comp:'my's
. its other ongoing operating costs. However, the Corﬁpany_ historical earnings levels, projected future earningé and
may need to access capital markets 1o pay the principal of the expected timing of the taxable deductions principally
its credit facilities, or in connection with possible related toamounts paid by the Trust or irahsfen*e_d wa
significant future acquisitions.” - . ' ' ;peciﬁc settlement fund, the Company believes it will T
' . ' ., realize its net deferred tax asset. The Company’s valuation
- ’ Cyclicality of Demandlcbn"lpgt'rtive Environment allowance on all deferred tax assets is'subject to change as
Demand for the Company’s produ;:ls has historically been - ‘ fore'casts,of fumre years' earﬁings and the estimated Gming
. ~ cyclical due to macroeconomic factors aﬂ‘eéﬁn‘g residential - of the utilization'of the Company’s tax-benefits are revised.
- and commerdial consuuct_ionfmarkets. Due to their ’ . _ ] ’ _ ' ‘
specific market niches, the Com pany’s'r‘eplacement ’ ‘[f the Trust were to sell the stock ata price greater than the
roofing, filration and specialty products are less sensitive Company’s carrying valte, the Company may receive a tax
10 business cycles. Selling prices are subject to factors .. benefitin excess of the deferred tax asset reflected for
influenced by the compétiu've environment in which the financial reporting pluposes Likewise, if the Trust were 10
Company opetiteS, including fluctuations in overall . sell the stock at a price lower than the carrying value, the
) capacity udlization. - ‘ N . Compan‘y would receive a tax benefit less than the deferred
‘ ' _ tax asset reflected for financial reporting purposes, To
: _Income Taxeé o ‘ ’ fltustrate, usiilg the December 31, 1998 closing market -
g - The cash taxes paid by the Company in the U.S. were ‘ pﬁce of $16.4375 per share, and assuming full realizaton,
‘ substantially lower than statutory rates due to the ' the deferred tax asset related to the Company’s stock held
' Company’s deductions related to payments made to the E by the Trust would tota) approximately $720 million, wl_li;:h
Trust, tax credit carryforwards and, in 1996, net operating exceeds the carrying value by nearly $570 million,
loss carryforwards. The Coinpaﬁy receives a tax deduction '_ S : :
__for the amount of any dividends paid on shares of the Under Section 468B of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, .
.éompany’s common stock held by the Trust. In addition, the Company s responsible for income taxes on the )
the Company will receive a tax deduction when the Trust 1axable income of the Trust's specific settlement fund ata
sells some or all of its shares of common stock and . . “tax rate of 15 peréent Any stich taxes paid by the -7
distributes the proceeds to its beneficiaries or transfers . . Company will generate a tax deduction for the Company.
" the proceeds to a specific settlement fund. X ' ; . The Compa'nylcannot predict the amount of any siich,
' : i - future tax obligations. However, related liabilities could  ~ |

- : ; . . " become material in certain situatons including the Trust
- IR . C ] monetizing, and retaining the proceeds of, a'significant
portion of its investment in the Company's common
’ - : stock or the settlement of this obligation between the
. ‘ ' Corﬁpany and the Trust, During-1998, the Company
_ tncurred approximately $3 million of these taxes, before
to ( _ any U.S. federal or state benefit. "

» v
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Capital Spem:!ing and Capacity Expansion )

- Thg'Co,m.pany estimates capital spending in 1999 of '
approximately $160 million excluding acquisitions, of
which approximately $59 million will be used in capacity
éxpan§ion programs. As of December 31, 1998,
outstanding purchase commitments relating to capital -
spending and capacity efv(panr.ion projects totaled:
$18 1 million. The Company plans to fund its capital
spendmg from available cash ba]a.nces and cash flows
generated by operations. The Company s capacny
expansion programs are periodically revised to reflect

_changes in demand, industry capacity and the results of

productivity improvements and technological innovations.

In response to the implementation of the 1990 Amendments
to the federal Clean Air Act and reqmrements of various
state air emissions regulations, the Company may be

obligated to further monitor'and reduce air emissions at its .

manufacturing sites. The Title 1L air toxics regujaﬁons
applicable to the Company'’s fiber glass plants were issued in

proposed form in 1997. Subsequent proposed amendments

_ to those regulations in the first quarter of 1999 did not )
change the substantive requirements related to air toxics.
The Company does not anticipate significant compliance
costsas a result of these regulations. Because the other N
amicipateﬁ regulations have not yet been proposed, neither
the costs nor iming of (iompliaoce can be reasonébly
anticipated at'this time, however; these anticipated ;

" regulations could require capital expéndi_n‘]res in the years
19992001, with most of the expenditures occurring in the
latter part of that time frame. ’

 segment. In December 1998, the Company acquired the

Acquusmons o : . _
In January 1998, the Company acqulred the assets of a
USs. manufacturer of reinforcéd thermoplastlc roofing _
systems and also acquired a plant associated with the -
Insulation segment, which manufactures calcium silicate

.  pipe énd block insulation, and ﬁreproof board. In May

1998, the Company acquiréd Exeltherm, a Canadian -
producer of polyisocyanurate foarn products for
commerc:al /industrial roofing and residential

. construction. Also in May 1998, the Company acquxred

Skandinaviska Jute, which owns Tasso AB, a European
manufacturér of fiber glass wall coverings. This acquisition
is associated with businesses of the Engineered Products

assets of a 1.S. manufacturer of commercial /industrial
rooﬁng insulation products. Also in December 1998, the -
Company entered into ajoirrt venture to develop,

manufacture and market products p;ed to stop the spread

of fires in new'and existing buildings. This joint venture is

associated with businesses of the Insulation segment.

_The combined purchaée price for these acquisitions,
accounted for under the purchase merhod WS

$92.2 mﬂhon which was financed from exxsung cash

-balances and borrowings under credit facilities. The excess’
" of the combined purchase price over the estimated fair
- value of net assets acquired, or goodw_rill\, amounted to
. approximately $59 million. Certain amounts of the
: purchase pl‘ice allocation related to preacouisilion '
_ continggncies and rest.mct'u'ring decisions were based on

preliminary estimates and may be revised during 1699,
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‘MANAGEME-NT:'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Subsequeﬁt Event
On January 1, 1999, the Company completed the

- acquisition of Hoechst's Spunbond/Monofilament

' operations. This'acquisition will expand existing product

" lines of the Company’s Engmcered Products segment. in
North America and Europe. The cash payment for this
acqulsmon, to be accounted for under the purchase
method, will be $227.3 million (subject to certain
post-closing adjusl:mer'lr.s)., financed with borromﬁngs from
the Company's credit fagililies. The acquisition borrowings,

drawn during December 1998, are shown as the acquisition

deposit on the Company’s balance sheet. The a]locauon of -

the purchase price will be finalized during 1999 upon
complcuon of asset valuauons and determination of

prcvau:smon contingencies and restructuring decisions,

- on which it is installed. Subsequently, the Company began

.the contifigencies described above, Based on the
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Contingent Product Liability .
Between 1988 and 1992, the Company mamufactured
phenolic roofing insulation whn:h may, under certain

circumstances, Contribtite to the corrosion of mctal decks

a voluntary program to inspect such metal decksand
remediate where appropriate. The Company has accrued
for costs relating to future inspeclions, remediaton and
amicip;ted claims. These accruals are based on the
Company’s historical experience regarding the incidence
of corrosion and the cost of remediation and include a
number of assumptions related to the types of roofs on
which phenolic insulation has been installed as well as
the assumpu'bn that the Company’s paSt remed.iatic;n )
experience will continue over the remammg lives of roofs

insulated with the Company s phenolic roofing insulation.

Pursuant to reimbursement agreements with the Company’s
liability carriers and former owner of the phenolic roofing

" insulation business, the Company has been reimbursed for

a porton of historical costs incurred and is entitled to receive

‘Teimbursement for a substantal portion of future costs to be

incurred by the Company for inspection and remediation.

In 1996, the Company and a thrd party were na.med as
defendants in two class action cases, now consolidated,

filed in U.S. District Court in Boston, Massachusetts I'he

plaintiffs purport to represent all building owners in the

U.S. with phenolic insulation installed on their roof decks -
and seek damages and i 1ryu.nctwc relief, mcludmg an order ‘

[

requiring the removal and replacement of the phenolic

" insulation and remediadon of any deck corrosion. The

Company intellds'f'.to defend these allegations vigorously.

The Company has reviewed its historical inspection and

. remediation experience and the terms and collectbility of - *

amounts under the reimbursement agreements in light of

- information available to date and subject to the assumptions -

described above, if additional costs are incurred in exceéss» ) ‘
of the accrued amounts, such costs are not expected to

have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition, liquidity or results of Gperations:




Envnronmental Contingencies
At December 31, 1998, the Company had remechauon
activities in progress at four sites, out of a total of 16 such ’
sites for which the Company has identified environmental
“conditions reqL\lin'ng remediation. In addition, the

* Company has been identified as a potentallyresponsible
party at lzl’non-Company owned or operated sites under
the federal Comprehensive Environmental Rcs;-)onse,
Compensation and LiAbility Act (“CERCLA”) or similar
state legislation. Of these 14 sites, the Company’s potential

_ Tiability for ten sites will be determined pursuant to the

' settlement agreement described in the following paragraph.

Three of the sites may not bé subject to the setdement

agreement and, accordingly, the. Company could be _]omtly ‘

and severally liable for costs of remediating these sites. At
one of the sites, only part of the liability will be determined
by the settlement agreement with the rest of the liability
bemg the subject of a U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (“EPA”} de MINMLS setilement offer.
In 1994, the U.S. government and the Oompany. settled |
certain litigation concerning the Company’s disposal
activities prior to consammation of its plan of Co
reorganization. The setlement agreeme-nt, which was made
a court order, limits the Company’s future liability under
both CERCIA and the Resource Conservation and

) Recovery Act (“RCRA"} to 55 percent of its share of
site-wide response costs and natural resources damages
without regard to joint and several liability for disposals

made by the Company prior to consummation of the

* Company’s pli.il'l’l ¢f reorganization. The agreement resolved -
. - 1

the Company’s liability at certain historical sites and also
covers CERCLA and RCRA liability for other disposal sites
atwhich the EPA has‘incurred or ma_y incur response costs
‘and which were used by the Company prior to “
consummation of the plan of reorganization. The
'agreém_em provides that the amount the Company will be
obligated to pay, in the aggregate, for such sites shall never
exceed $850,000 during_any given year. The EPAand ;‘
others from time to time commence cleanup activites at -
such sites and in the future the EPA and others may assert
claims against the Gompany w:th respect to such sites.
The Company believes that all such activities and clmms,

if any, will be SlleCCI o the agreement.

. among potentially responsible parties, actual costs to

At December 31, 1998 and 1997, the Cofnpany's balance
sheet included undiscounted accruals for environmental
*. remediation costs, including ongoing compliance,

maintenance and monitoring costs, of $34.8 million and

- $36.5 rm!llon respectively. The Company paid $1 7 mllhon

and §1. 3 million for environmental cleanup in 1998 and
1997, respecuvely Except for certain one-time costs
(related to the nonrecurting charges as dlSCUSSCd in
“Results of Operations — Nonrecurring Charges”) '

" expected to be incurred in 1999 and 2000 totaling
$12.9 million, the Company believes amounts paid in
1998 and 1997 are representative of the Company's-future
“annual environmental cleanup costs and anticipates
expenditures relating to costs currendy accrued to be
made over the next 15 years. P

' As a result of factors such as changes in federal and

_state reguiau'ons, the application and effectiveness of .-
remedial actions, the difficulty in assessing the extent of '

- environmental contamination, and the allocation of costs

be incurred for environmental cleanup may vary from
previous estimates. Subject o the uncertainties inherent T
in evaluating environmental exposures, and based on
information presently available, including the Company’s
historical remediation experience, currently enacted
environmental laws and regulations, and existing
remediation technology, the Company believes thatif |
" additional costs are incurred in excess of the accrued
améunts, such costs are not expected to have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition,

liquidity or. results of operations. - -

T .
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- Year 2000 Compliance | .
"The Company is engaged in a comprehensive project to
- modify its systems for‘year 2000 eompliance. The

Company’s approach to year 2000 compliance activities
may be broken down into five general areas: inventory,

analysis/planning, repair/modification/testing, LT

certification, and cc_)ntingency plans,

+ ’ i

As of December 31, 1998, the Company has completed

" substantially all of the inventory and a majority of the

analysis/planning phases of the project which involved
obtaining systems inventories including embedded

technology, performing onssite audits at operating locations,
contacting vendors to obtain compliant releases of e
hardware and software, and establishing project plans and
associated implementation schedules. Testing and -

repair/modification work and surveys of major suppliers to

.deterimine their level of compliance began during the

second quarter of 1998 and will‘continue through the first’
quarter of 1999. Certifications began during the fourth
quarter of 1998, with completion expected in early 1999.

Business conciniu'py and contingency plans, including,

. among other things, manual equipment operations and-

scheduling, are currenty being developed to address high

" risk a.neas as they are identfied with contingency plans in

place by the end of 1999. To date, the phases of the prQ]ect.
-currently underway have progressed substantially as
planned Failure by the Oompa.ny or its vendors and
customers 1o achieve year 2000 comphance ‘could result in
disruption of the Company's operations, possibly impacting
the Company'’s akility to obtain raw materials, prodlice

products, or collect revenues. However, the Company

" believes that its compliance efforts will be successful and-

that significan distuptions of the Company’s operauons are
uniikely to develop. )

The Company spent approximately $1.4 million in 1998
on year 2000 projects and activides. The estimated total
costs for vear 2000 related projects and activities,
anticipated to be completed in 1999, are not expec(ed to -

exceed $5 million. However, if costs are incurred in excess
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of the above estimates, such costs are not expected to have

a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition, liquidity, or results of operations. All futuye *
expenditures will be funded through oberations and.will
directly impact the Téported level of income. The above
discussion regarding costs, risks and estinated completion
dates for year 2000-compliance activities is based'on
estimates given information that is curendy ;1vajlable,

and is subject to change.

.. Introduction-of the Euro ‘ .
" On January 1,'1999, eleven countries of the European

Union established a new single European currency

(the “Euro") The Euro will become a currency in its own

+ rightand will completely replace the currencies of the
participating countries by 2002. This conversion may affect,

among other things, crossborder competition among
member countries, product pricing, exchange rate risk and
derivatives exposure, and information technology and

systems. The Company's European businesses, primarily

'in the Engineered Products segment, accounted for
_ approximately 12 percent of total sales during 1998: '_I'h:*:

Company is addressing issues related to the conversion and,
at this time, is not expecting material adverse effects on its

. financial condition, liquidity or results of operations..

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the Fmancxal Accounung Standards Board
issued Statement of Fmancxal Accounting Standards-

No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activ‘ities.” This statement, effective for all ﬁsgal
quarters of fiscal years beginning after June 15, 199_9., ¢
establishes accounting and‘rep'ortring standards for
derivative instruments and for hedging activities.

It requires that the Company recognize all derivatives as
either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial
position and measure those instriments at fair value.. o
At this time, the Company cannot determine the effects,
if any, adopfng this statement will have on its finanicial

conditon, liquidity or results of operations. However, the -

Company does not expect a significant impact on its-

results of operations.

v
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The Company is exposed to, among other things, the
1mpact of interest rate changes, foreign currency
- fluctuations, and changes in commodity prices related _
' to energy. The Company employé established policies
and procedures to manage its exposure and minimize

*volatility in carnings and cash flows, lower costs

and protect the value of certain foreign currency

denominated assets, liabilities and antcipated, -

.transactions. To achieve these objectives the Company

enters into interest rate swaps (0 Manage net eXposure
. " tointerest rate.changes related to its debt obligations,

* foreign currency conuacts that change in value as fore:gn
exchange rates fluctiate and tontracts to purchase
certain quantities of goods at fixed prices. Itis the
Company’s pohcy to enter into these derivative
ransactions only to the extent necessary to meet the -

objectives stated above. Consequently, the éompany does

not enter into these transactions for speculative purposes. =«

Based on a one percentage point increase in applicable

ime}es't rates, the hypothetical pretax loss in eamings' on’
s an annual basis related to the Company's debt and

dem‘auve ﬁna.nc:al instruments subject 10 interest rate

risk at December 31, 1998 would be appr0x1mately

$3 million. As of December 31 1998 the Company did

not have any s1gmﬁcam out.standmg foreign currency

]

contracts or commodlty contracts.
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This report contains ;forward-looking statements™ within

differ materially from those expressed in suc‘/h statements.

are set forth below.

Forward-Looking, Statements I

- .

the meaning of the Private Securities Liagaton Reform .
Act of 1995. Statements of the Company contained in this
report concerning matters that are not historical facts,
including, without limitation, statéments concerning

(i) the Company's estimates concerning nonrecurring
charges taken in 1996, (ii) the Comp.:my’s ability to realize
its net deferred tax asset, (i) the Company’s expectations
as to contingencies related to taxés, phenolic roofing

msu.lauon and environmental liabilities, (iv} the effect on

l Lhe bu:ldlng 1nsulat10n business resulting from-the

current pncmg env-lronment (v} the Company s

estimates of caplta.l spending, (vi) the expected benefits.
from the continuing mtegrauon of acquisitions and
capacity expansions, {vii) the possible earnings decline
from the economic slow down in Asia and Russia in the
Engineered Products segment (viii} the Company’s
expectauons concemmg interest rates and equity markets
and their effect on 1999 pension expense (income} and

c:Jsh flows, (1x) the Compa,ny’s estimates.on the abilil){ of

_the Company and its vendors and customers to replace, :

- medify or upgrade computer systems.in ways that

adequately addréss the year 2000 issue, (x} the *
Company’s expectations concerning the Euro, tonversion,
(xi} the projected impact of the ultimaté adoption of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. _1.33,

“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging °
Activities,” and (xii), the Gompany’s ability to satisfy its

debt service ;equireme_nt.s, its ongoing capital expansion
program and its other ongoing operating costs, constitute ,
such forward-iooking statements. See “Liquidity and

:Cap:ta.l Resources

Vv :

Forwardooking statements of the Company are subject to

risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to

Important factors relating to such risks and uncerdinites




MAHAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANI] ANA[YSIS

Factors that could affect the forward-looking statements
generally are related to demand for the Company’s
products and to overall capacity levels in the industry,
Demand for such products is generally cyclical and is*
influenced by macroeconomic factors that affect .
demand in residential and commercial construction ~
and replacement markets and deménd-from original
equipment manufacturers, including the géneral rate .
- of infladon, interest rates, employment rates and overall
consumer confidence Approximately 75 percent of
the Cémpany’s annuai salés are made to cqston‘lers n

' commercial/ indusﬁa] markets, wﬁi]e the remainder are -

- to residennal construction markets.

Overall capacity levels in the industry directly affect prices for
the Company’s products. Other factors that may affect prices
- include the overall compettive environment in which the
Company operates, the availability and pricing of raw -
mat'en'als, rates of technological development and changes in
preduictivity. In addition, overall demand for the Company’s
 products could be affected by the factors described in
“BUSINESS —Occupational Health and Safety Aspects of the
“Company's Products” in the Company’s Annual Report on
P:Ol‘l’;’l 10K for the year ended December 31, 1998.

’

Specific factors that might affect the ability of the Company

and its vendors and customers to replace, modify or -

- upgrade systems in ways that adequately address the year

2000 issue include the ability to identify and correct all

relevant systems, unanticipated difficulties or delays in the
1mp1ementauon of the Company s remediation plans and

the ability of third parties to adequately address their own

year 2000 issues, as well as those issues discussed in

“Liquidity anid Capital Resources — Year 2000 Compliance

and Introduction of the Euro.”.  *

Factors relating to the Company’s estimates concerning
nonrecurring charges-are discussed in “1997 vs 1996

Results.of Operations” and factors relating to the’

Company's net deferred 12 asset are discussed in

“Liquidity and C.aplta] Resources—Income Taxes For

a dlscussmn of factors concerning. contmgenaes related

1O [axes, phenohc roofing insulation, environmental

matteis and the introduction of the Euro, see “Results of
Operations ~ Income Takes” and “Liquidity and Capital .
Resources- Oon'tjngent Product Liability, Environmental -
Coritingencies, and Introduction of the Euro?

Other factors also could affect the Company’s expected -
levels of capital spending and ﬁmdjng of current -
opefaﬁons, debt service and div-idqrids, inclﬁding, without
limitation, the contingencies and commitments discusséd
in the Company's financial statements included in this
report for the year ended D(:‘:C(:‘:l;ﬂber 31,1998.,
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.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET I

’ . . ) i L In theusands of dollars -
December 31, R ER 1998 1997
Current Assei.s ) - . : ) o
Cash and equalents : . - . $ 12350 ° $ 132,137
Marketable securities, at cost, which approximates market o o ; 4,168 36929 - .
Receivables - : . : . b 264,407 221,943 .
 Inventories o o ’ T F: 1 b [ T 127,061 " -
Prepaid expenses T - ‘ T ) 12560 . . 11,409
Deferred tax assets : o o : - o . 36,648 42 006
Total Current Assets ~ : . . D v, 461882 571,485
Property, Plant and Equipment, at cost” . S o L . ‘
Land and improvements’ : N _ . - §5,747 . 50,189
- Buildings . ) : g ‘ 256,153 " 246,175
Machinery and eqmpment o . S . 1,243593 1,141,106
, . _ o ‘ 1,655,493 T 1,487.470 ¢
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion’ ' ' . : 691,335 ) 639,711
Property, Plant and F.qmpment net ' S 864,198 ) 797,759 ‘,"
Deferred Tax Assets Lo , T ., 164024 194836 ©
Goodwill L . .J ' 248692 202844
Acquisition Deposit (Note 25) N : o . : 227,300 o .
. Other Assets . i T N, 241,169 213,610 )
Total Assets I _ . - $ 2,207,185 - $1,980,534
Liabilities L - I - w
Current Liabilities ‘ N - - a . . - : muym -
Shortterm debt . * - . .8 asm - § - L1767
" Accounts payable L - S 128,688 114,638 )
" Compensation and employee benefits . . - 99320 84,221 ,
Income taxes . . . , . 16,539 - , 8,703 l
Other accrued liabiliges . ' S 68,781 - 86,785
_ Total Current Liabilities P L ' © 317,969 - 206,114
Long-Term Debt, less current portion ' .- . . oo 587.276 - - 456,294 - = i
- Deferred Income Taxes . . ) ’ ~ : " 43,927 _ 42;175 K '
Posiretirement Benefits: Other Than Pensions T ) 186,949 ' - - 197419
Other Noncurrent Liabilities . ' T~ 7 280,956 295,449
Total Liabilities ' : T < 1417,077 ©1,287451
* Commitments and Oontmgencles (Notes 2, 8, I5'and 18) - o ' - :
Stockholders’ Equity - . - - s T -
Cumulative Preference Stock, Senes B, redeemed 1996 - . o o ' ' e .
Common Stock, $.01 par value, authorized 300,000,000 shares; LT . ) :
issued and outstanding 163,814, 572 shares and 158,997,817 shares, coL T c . . ‘ . v
respectively, in 1998; and 1ssued and outstanding 162,822,540 shares - . - ‘
- and 161,580,589 shares, respectively, in 1997 . . 1638 . 1,628
Treasury Stock, at cost, 4,816,755 shares in 1998 and 1,241,951 shares in 1997 .« {63,067} : ' (16,522) -
- Capital in Excess of Par Value : . 544667 - . 540422
Unearned Stock Compensation PR ' - L. (4,836) . . T (7,224)
Retained Farnings . ) S - 314,605 T 165492
‘Accumulated Other Oomprehenswe Income (Note 22) ’ - . - {2,899) - - 9,237 ) e
Total Stockholders’ Equity . . 790,108 - 693,083 -
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity o $ 2,207,185  $1,980,534.
The acccrmpa‘nying noles are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. . . R )

-’
’ - ) - . .
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-

- CONSOLIOATED STATEMENT OF INCOME ANO COMPREHENSIVE INCOME.

* In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts -

‘

For the Years Ended December 31, : 1998 1997 1996
Net Sales ‘ I B TU$1,781179  $1.647.645 -$1552,429 .
' Cost of Sales s I -+ 1303958 ° 1216135 1111811
- * Selling, General and Administrative ’ , 190,562 174573 . 171,027
> Research, Development and Engmeenng : 32,823 31,174 32,663
v Nonrecurnng Charges A . : . 49:156
‘ —, . Other Income (Expense), net . - 25,901 (10,541) (345)
’ Income from Operations - 279,737 215422 | 187427
. " InterestIncomé N 6,433 10,263 - 18,897
" Interest Expense. ' : : 35912 50205 48,242
- Profit Sharing Expense {Note 1 7) ' . ST ‘ . 6,648 -
Incorne from Continuing Operauons before Income Taxes 250,258 175,480 151,434
. Income Tax Expense (Benefit) ; . - - 64,967 44951 . (39,091)
- Income from Continuing Operations ; : 185,291 | 130,529 - 190,525
’ Gain on Dlsposal of Discontinued Operauons net of tax (Note 19 C- 19,471 - 216,246
- Income before Extraordinary Items and Cumulative Effect of Accountmg Change 185,291 - 150,000 - 406,771
Extraordinary Losses, net of tax {Notes 17 and 20) ' . {31,754 . - (316,285)
Cumulative Efféct of a Change in Accounung for Fumace Rebuilds; L
net of tax (No te.?l) ‘ N 27,409 : g -
Net Incomé i : : 180,946 150,000~ "90,486
Preference Stock Rgdemption Premium,/Dividends } . - L (60,341)
_*Net Income Applicable to Common Stock L 180,946 . 150,000 ¢ 30,145 )
) Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments, net of tax " - (12,186) @ (17,384) - (6,013) -
* Comi)rehensive Income L ! -0 ’ 8 168760 £ 132,616 5—5 24,1?;2 :
' - Earnmgs Per Gommon Share (Note II) - -
; Basicc - - . - T
; Tricome from Contlnmng Operations . %116 $.81 £ .86
Gain on_Disposal of Discontinued Operations, net of tax (Note 9 - ‘ R 12 1.43
N Income before Extraordinary Items and Cumulative Effect of Accountmg Change 1.16. ~.93 229
.7 Extraordinary Losses, net of tax (Nots 17 and 20) ~ . . {200 (2.09)
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accountmg for Furnace Rebuilds, ‘ . N 8
- -netof tax (Note 21) ) : A7 .
" Net Income Applicable to Comion Stock  * ~ . $113 ©  $93 $: .20
Diluted: - . - =
Income from Continuing Operauons B $1.15 - $.80 . ’ $ 85
' " Gairi on Disposal of. Dlsconunued Operations, nét of tax (Note 7 9) -2 1.42
" Income before Extmordmary Items and Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 115 92 2.27.
Extraordinary Losses, net of tax (Notes 17 and 20) {20} '
Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting for Fumace Rebuﬂds ) o
- net of tax (Note'21) | ‘ . ‘ . -. . -7 . (2.07)
’ " Net Income Applicable to Common Stock S $112 $92 * § 20

. The accompanying notes are an integral part of thes comsolidaied financial statements. -

L




" LONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASH FLOWS:

- o . - . In thousands of dollars
For the Years Ended December 31, - T : _ - v 1998 1997 T 1996 . L
. Cash Flows fror Operating Activities E , o . oL
Net income . ' " . $180946 $ 150,000 $ 90,486
e Ad_]ustments o recondile net income to net cash prowded by B . :
’ operating activities: - ’ ‘ -
Deprediation, depletion and amoruzatlon . o - 93,811 80,163 71,175
Deferred taxes N - ) N 17,099 C 11,571 “(67,178)_
‘Product guarantee income - - . ' . 2,283 4,961 ) 8,651 .
i Provision for furnace rebuilds o N : ' 11,264 .. 8270
Pension and postretirement benefits, net ’ S T {1,036} - 6,607 -12,251
Nonrecumng charges e T S - T49870° - - .

" Interest expense L . : ) o 2,626 2,318 ~ 2047 ..

" Profit sharing expense - T : - - TS 6648 '
Gain on disposal of dlsconunued operatlons (19,471) ' (216,246) .
Extraordinary losses - . o , . . "814,206 . -
Cumulative effect of accounting change L, .- ' {27.409) : o :
Other, net - i : CT 10,638 9,721 T90,534 .

{Increase) decrease in current assets: o / s . ' ) :
Receivables - ! : : ' : o {30,984} 22,985 o141 T

-7 . Inventories e : AT £ <1 (18,423) ' (2,680)

Prepa.ld expenses . L . S - . 965 (4 165) (1,752) '

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities: o - ) - A e ) .
Accounts payable + . - ~e ot AV (5,217) . (7,681)
Compensation and employee benefits - . ' 12,617 (11,37%) (13,022) - v

R Income taxes . ) " . . . 11314 ~(24,701) (14,186)-

Other accrued llablhtles ' : - - {19.431) " 283,264\ (40,412)

Decrease in postretirement, benefits other tha pensmns C S " {23,822) - ' (16,363) (16,347

Decrease'in other noncurrent liabilities . . ) . {18.381) - (54,420) . . {16,450) , “

- - Profit sharing paid - . ) ' .(34,309) ° sonmratemie

Net cash provided by operati-ng activities . - - . - 226,338 168 721 ) 165,396 ‘-

Cash Flows from Investing Activities L N : PP

Purchases of property; plant and eqmpment ) . ' - " {106372) - (90 528) (103,041} )

Acquisition deposit . ’ N (227,300} _ "

N Acquisitions . o o - ' (92,205} (136,521} © (153,118)

Proceeds from salé of assets ) . , . ) 6314 . _ 9351 - 15386

Proceeds from disposition of Riverwood - ‘ , ' " 1,081,341

Purchases of available-forsale marketable securities ) i - (8,388} (27,664) ~(81,332),

_ Puirchases of held-to-maturity marketable securities . (2,033) (14,042) . .  (53,458)

.. Procéeds from sales of available-forsale marketable securities . 30,154 - 45712 - 55,035 .
Proceeds from maturities of heldto-marurity marketable securities , 15,018 2538 84,446 . ’ R
(Increase) decrease in other assets ) (6,322} (2,238) 20,177 - - ’
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities : ‘ . .- (391,134) - (213387 935,441
Cash Flows from Fmancmg Actwmes ) . : : . ‘

Issuance of debt N : . 599,587 56,637 63

- " Payments on debt . - - . ' . . {469,873) (61,170) (42,786)

Preference stock redempuon/ dividends - ' o ' _ v ' . T ] (241,056}

_ Dividends on common stock ™ ‘ R ’ (28,775} . . (20,995) (972,988)

Stock warrants exercised . ] T ) ’ 64,794 .

Treasury stock transactions 0 L, (46,545) (281) (14,242) - ’

Other stock transactions ) ’ s C . 5,226 ' 830. 2514 '

Net cash.provided by (used in) financing activities . T .59,620 . (25479) -(1,208,701)

. Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash o -7 a1 . (43297 (1,340)
K Net Decrease in Cash and Equivalents - ' : (119,787) (74,468) (104,204) ,
. Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year - . T T 132,137 206,605 310,809 . -

Cash and Equivalents at End of Year . . $ 12,350 $ 182,137° $ 206,605 -

,' The accompanying notes'are,an integral part of these KOHSOE(JIIIEP{X’ financial statements, l B .
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'

. CONSOLIONTED STATEMENT-OF STOTKHOLOERS” EQOITY

c

' Cumulative
* Preference - .
. . Stock, . Common +  Treasury
- " Series B ‘Stock " Stock. '

‘Balances_ at December 31,1995 $ 178,638 - '$1,298 $ (1,999

Net income for the year . ’

Cwrency translation N -

Exercise of warrants for common stock ‘69

Stock compensation plan transactions -’ - . ) 5 )

Common stock dividends' ' -

Preference stock dividends o o . .
Rédemptiofl of preference stock’ - o (178,638) o )
Putchase of treasury stock . . T (14242)
Issuance of common stock in connection ' : - a

“with thé profit sharing exthange ' . 325

Balances at December 31, 1996 1,627 (16,241)

Net income for the year‘ ,

Cm‘rehg{r Uanslaﬁoﬁ . ) ! .
Stock compensation plan transactions .

Common stock dividends . . ‘ .
Purchase of treasury stock (281) -
Balances at December 31, 1997 1,628 ©(16,522)

Net income for the-year ’ ' ‘ c

" Currency translation - .
Stock compensation plah transactions - b 10 .
" Common stock dividends . | ( .

Purchase of treasury stock . " o (46,545)
Balances at December 31, 1998 . $1,638

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated  financial statements.

Y

$ (63,067)




In theusands of dollars

. Accumulated

$(4,836)

.- Capial in Uneamed ! p Other . Toul

- Excess of Stock - Retained " -Comprehensive ~ Stockholders’

Par Value Compensation T Farnings Income . Equity

$.1,013 505 O $(3427) T 8§ (39,322) $ 32,684 . '$ 1,181,307

) S 90,486 ‘ 90,486
. ) (6,013) (6,018)"
64,725 , 64,794 .

14989 - o (5697) - 9,297

" (979,988) . ’ .- O (4,843). (977,851)
B - (8,215) (8,215),

- (52,126) ' o . T (280,764)
R . (14.249)

. 471,318 . . T 471,643
" 530493 (9,124) 38,106- 96,671 580,462

) - 150,000 ' _ 150,000
. ) ) (17,584) (17.384)

999 1,900 _ ) R 2,900

o L : . (22,614) . (22,614)

, ] _ ) - (281)
540,422 (7,224} 165,492 - 9,287 693,083
S 180,946 - ‘ 180,946~ .

) (12,186) (12,186)

4,245 2,388 h : . 6643

. (31,833) ' T (31,889)

. i ' N . . (46,545)

$ 544,667 . $314,605 $(2,899) $ 790,108

-
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANEIA[ STATEMENTS |

Notel: ~ - -
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

v

. Johns Manville Corporation (“Johns Manville” or the

“Company"} manufactures and markets building and

equ.ipmeht insulation, commercial/industrial roofing

" systems, high-efficiency filtration medid,"and fibers and

nonwoven mats used as reinforcements in building and
industrial applications. The Company estimates that
hpproximately 75 pércent of its annual sales ére to
commerc;al/ industrial markets, while the remainder are
to residential construction markets The Company’s

or .

products are sold to (;ontr"actors mass merchants, wholesale

" distributors and fabricators throughout North America,

Europe and Asia, . .

The Manville Personal Injury Settlement Trust (the

“Trust™) owns approximately 79 percent of the Company's

_common stock.

(A} Pr:nc:ples of Consol:datlon B -
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Johns Manville Corporation and its majonty-owned
subsidiaries. All significant i mtercompany transacuons have

been elumnated v

B} Use of Estimates . . e
The preparation of the Company’s consohdated financial

* statements in conformity with generally accepted

- accounting pririciples requires management to ‘make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in these financial statéments, including disclosures of
contngent liabilities. )

]

-~

P

* Amounts related to interest swap transactions qualifying

“identification method. -

{C} Cash and Equivalents

Cash and equivalents include n"noney markét mlitpal
funds, time deposits and marketablése_curities with -~ E -
onginal maturities of three m(.)nth.s or less. ‘ _ i -
{D) Financial lnstruments )

The Company uses the a.mornzed cost method of ©
accounung for investments in held-to-marmrity debt - ‘

securities for' which it has the positve intent and ability 0

hold to maturity. Fair value accounting is used for debt
'securiu'es'l’:hat are classified as availableforsale securities. i

Realized gains and losses are computed on the specific

i
i

Gains and losses on foreign currency transactions and

relatéd forward exchange contracts are included in other -

income (exp;:r‘lse), net, for the perioﬂ in which the

exchange rate changes. The discount or premium on < -

" forward contracts is accounted for separately from the'gain

or loss on the contracts and is amortized to other income -

" (expense}, net, over the life of the contract.

3
A

for hedge accounting, payable or receivable, al:é accrued

‘on a current basis as adjustments to interest expense.

Any gains (losses) on the termjnation of the interest rate
swaps are deferred and recognized over periods

corresponding to the related obligation being hedged.

{E) lnventorles

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market Cost i is
determmed principally on the lastin, ﬁtst—out LIFO) basis -
for all domestic subsidiaries. The ﬁl‘St-]n, first-out (FIFO)

basis is used to determi{ie the (_fost 'of inventories for all

foreign subsidiaries.
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(3] Prﬁperﬁ:, Plant and Equipment
_Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost.,

Depreciation expense is computed using the straightline .
method, based upon the estimated useful lives of the

assets, Buildings are depreciated principally over.

90 to 40 years, and'l_nach_ihely'and equipment are

. delf)reciatecfi printipally over 20 years. The Company

evaluates the recoverablhty ‘of property, plantand
equipmént-through its ongoing strategic planning process

N

Mamtenance and repairs are charged to current

- period earnings, while replacements and betterments

- are capitalized. ! _ - o

{G) Goodwill *

N -

' . Goodwill associated with acquisitions in excess of fair

value of net assets aequired is amortized on a straightline -

-basis gener':dly over 20 years. The Company evaluates
" the recoverability of goodwill.through its ongoing strategic

" Al
« - e
"

planning process. -

{H} Hevenue Recognmon L

The Oompany recognizes revenué from product sales .

£ upon shipment. The Company estimateés and records

- provisions for cash discounts, customer incentives, sales

rerns, allowances and 0nglnal warranties in the’ penod
the sale is ‘reported, based on jts expenence ’
The Company also sells extended roofing p;'oduct ‘
guarantees for periods of 10 to 20 years. These extended .
guarantees cover the water tightness of roofing systéms
fiesulling from defects in materials or deficiencies in’
workmanship. Revenue on these prdduci guarantees is
recogmzed over the contract penod in proportion to

o

costs mcurred

{n Workers Compensatlon

The Company accruesa liability for workers’ compensauon :
claims at present value, due to the fixed and determinable
nature of the claim payments, based upon an evaluation

of historical claims data and expected future claims. In
addition, the Company records a receivable at present

* value for the portion of outstandmg claims covered by~

thxrd -party insurers. ’ '
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“ purposes. In order to fix a portion ofithe Oompanys .

{J} lncome Taxes ]
Tax credlts granted by vanous countries are accounted fof
‘as reductions of 1nc0me tax expense in the year in which
the retated expenditurés bécome éligible for investment

benefit under applicable tax regulations.
' ; - ' B N . . . ' ' ..

. i
{K) Reclassifications - i . .
Certain prior year information has been reclassified to

~

conform with the current year presentation. e R

- -

p

Note 2: . ' 4

.. Financial Instruments _ - . o

The Company has had limited involvement with derivative

- financial instruments and does not use them for trading

variable interest rate debt and reduce the aggregate nsk to

mo_vements in interest rates, the Company entered into

" interest rate swap transactions with notional values totaling

approximately $240 million. In addition to reducing: risk, m
the interest rate swaps have a correlauon to the underlymg - my__
debt obligation, and therefore, qua.llfy for hedge ]

accounting. At Decemnber 31, 1998; the fair market v-.;lyfe

of these instruments reflected unrecognized losses of_ P

' $7.8 million. (For additional information on fair market |
value disclosure's, see Note 7. ~ , .

o

The Company enters into forelgn exchange forward
contracts to hedge ag'amst currency ﬂuctuatlons on_ L
certain mz}tenal foreign currency exposures and records ) .
+a receivable/payable which is classified consistently with LT
the related oﬁtstanding foreign'cuﬁ-‘ency exposure. -
The Cbﬁlpany did not have any s_igniﬁ_-cam forward .
contracts outstanding at December 31, 1998 or 1997.




" NOTES T0 CONSOLIOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company had outstandmg letters of credlt totaling
$16.5 ‘million and $154 mllllon as of December 31,1998
and 1997, respecuvely Letters of credit are pnma.nly
collatemhzed by cash.

N .
The Company mamta.ms cash and cash equivalents and
ceriain other ﬁnanc;al instruments with various ﬁnanclal i
 institutions throughout the world. The Company invests
excess cash in a diversified portfolio of high-quality money
market instruments consistent with the preservation of
capital and the ma_in'tenance of liquidity. The Company's k
Vinves‘tment' policies ;equire diversification of investments
and include restrictions on maturity and credit quality. The )
Company monitors compliance w1th these restrictions on
an origoing'basirs., The Company has not experiénced any

material losses related to these investments,

- The Company does not obtain collatt;ral or ather security

- to support financial instruments subject t6 credit risk, -
but monitors the credit standing of counterparues

" The Company is exposed to credit losses in the event

of nonperformance by the counterparues to its financial -

' 1nstmments -but does not anm:lpate any significant
off-balance-sheet credit risk of accounting loss. The
Company anticipates that count(;rparties will be able
to fully satisfy their obligaﬁons' under the contracts. . .

' aw'ajlable—forjsz{le debtsecurili_es, principally escrowed -

At December 31, 1998, the Company held investments

- in debt securities that were classified as held—to—maturity

with an amortized cost basis of $12.9 million, which

approx1mated fair value. The Company ] lnvestments in T
held-to-maturity debt securites at December 31 1998 were
classified on the balance sheet as cash equwa!ents of T -
$2 mllhon marketable securities of $4.2 million and other i
assets of $6.7 million, dependmg upon the nature and

maturity of the investments. Of these securities,

$6.2 million had contractual maturities w1th|n one year;

_ the remal_nder mature in gne to five years. Additionally,

at December 31, 1998, thie Company had investments in

funds, that .were classified on the balance sheet as other

assets of $5.2 million. The amortized cost basis of these

securities approximated fair value : Of these'securities,
$5.1 million had contractual maturities within one year.
At December 31, 1997, the Company held investments
indebt secunues that were classified as held—to—matunty )

with an amoruzed cost basis of $54.9 million, Wthh

approximated fair value. The Company’s mvestmenrs in

" held-to-maturity debt securities af December 31, 1997

were cla.ssuﬁed on the balance sheet as cash equwa]ents of
$31 million, marketable securities of $14 7 million and -
other assets of $9.2 million, dependmg upon the nature

- and maturity of the investments. Of these securities, +

£45.7 million had contractual matrities within one year;

- the remainder mature in one to five years: Additionally,

at December 31, 1997, the Company had investments in
avaﬂable-for—sale_ debt securities that were classified on
the balance sheet af'marketable securities of $22.2 million

and other assets of $4.7 million. The amortized cost basis

. of these securities approximaied fair value. Of these

securitjes $5.1 million had conuacmal‘rnaturilies within
one year the remammg $21 8 million have conuactual 7

maturities of one to five years.

During 1998, 1967 and 1996, the Company sold securitics
that had been classified as availableforsale, resuling in

proceeds of $30.2 million, $45.7 million and $55 million:
respectively, which approximated carrying value each year. .
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Noté 5 '

Note 3: ) ' . ,
Receivables o - Short-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

. . . ' In thousands of dollars N 1.’7: t;muandj of dollars
: S Y. 1998 1997 IR 1998, - ‘1997
Trade $281,389 $237,743 Stortterm borrowings™ . . $4,074  $1330
Less allowances .. 41528 36,780 )

. , 239,861 200,963 _
. Other . ’ 24546 20680

. $264,407 $221,M3

Included in allowances are doubtfu] accoiints of $5 million
and $6 miltion at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.
The Company generally requ1res no collateral on ' L

" receivables. The provision for doubtfial accounts charged
(crechted) to Ccosts and expenses related to conunwng
operations was $0.4 million for 1998, $(0. 2) mllhon for 1997
and $1.1 million for 1996,

Note 4:
lln\;entori‘eg; .
o . In thousands of dollars
i 1998 1997
Finished goods - $ 84393 § 82082
Workdn-process . 13,945 10,869
Raw materials . 23813 ° 25410
Supplies‘ 9,558 8,700

- $131,709 $127,061

.

Inventories in the amounts of $31.1 million and

$23.4 million at December 31, 1698 and 1997,.resp‘eciively,r f

were valued uéing FtE‘O. The balance.of the inventories
" was valued using LIFQ. The'excess of current values over
amounts for financial reporting purposes was
_ $49.8 million and $53.8 mllhon at December 31,1998
- and 1997, respectively,. . T .|

.
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Vacation, compensation and

* Current portion of long-term debt 567 437

- . $4641  $1,767

The Company s 1ntemau0nal subsidiaries had borrowing -

and workmg cap1tal facilities totaling $13.3 million, of

: which $9 7 million was available at December 31, 1998,

These fac1l1ues are.pnnc1pally collatemhzed by the

Company s equity ownershlp in certain mternauonal

sub51d1anes and joint ventures.

. -

Note 6: , o ’
Compensation and Employee Benefits

L © o I thousands of dollars
' 1998 1997

“payroll deductions
Selfinsured medical and - -
group life coverage S 30,678 32,879

Other - t 5553 .‘3,405
‘ $99,320 §$84,221

$63,089 $47,957




NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FIRANEIAL STATEMENTS

- . ~

Note7: =~ -~ .
Long-Term Debt 0
) . I thousands of dollars
) ' ¥ - 1998 . . 1997
Unsecured .
Revolving credit facilities $ 550,007
Bonds payable to the Trust 22,446 $ 19,820

10.875 percent Johns Manville
International Senior Notes »
Collateralized -
Industrial revenue bonds"
* with interest at'ﬂoéﬁlllg
rates, from 2 percent to
8.625 percent, payable
through 2009, collateralized

2,525 400,000

by a letter of credit, real _ )
property and equipmént . 9488 .- 9557
" Notes payable with interest from ‘
5.98 percent to 8.13 percent, .- .
payable through 2007 3377 2354.
Revolving credit facility
with interest at LIBOR plus :
.percem 25,000
- 587,843 456,731
Less current portion’ 567 437

. $587,276 $456,204

-
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. - : # - . o
Revolving Credit Facilities B -

In May 1998, the Company repurchased througtia = ¥ .

-" cash tender offer substanua.lly all of its $400 million of

. 3.845 percent to 7.75 percent (see Note 25).

10.875 percent]ohns Manville Intemauonal Senior
Notes due 2004 (the “Senior Notes”} (see Note 20).

In conjurnction with the tender offer, the Company -

arranged unsecured multicurrency revolving credit '

facilities (the “credit facilities™) totaling approXimaiely '

$750 million at a floating interest rate of LIBOR. plus a .
margin with an initial terniination date of May 15, 2003. 7

The Company used $450 mﬂllon of the credit facilities to
repurchase the Seniior Notes. At December 51 J1998,

$5650 million of borrowings under the credit facilides - -

were outstanding at interest rates ranging from s

The fehlaining credit facilities are available for ﬁJndin&

* acquisitions and capital expenditures, and other corporate

purposes. The Company also canceled its $100 million
receivables sale facility and its $75 million revolving line of ~ ~
credit available to international subsidiaries.

Bonds Payable to the Trust . '

At December 31,1998, the bonds payable to the Trust (the
“Trust Bonds”) of $22.4 mﬂllOﬂ consist of a series of ﬁxed
payments totaling $75 milion per year in 2013 and 2014

’

discounted at 13 percent. . - -~
Senior Notes - SR - .
The Johns Manville International 10.875 percent Senior - '
Notes,:with interest payable semianf:ua]j)g are due 2004.
These notes, substandaily all of which were repurchased as -
descriISed above, may be redeemed on of" after December
15, 1999 at prices r‘a.ngmg from 100 percent to 105 percent

N

of the pnnmpa.l amount, plus accmed interest. -

L
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Long-term debt maturmes at December 31, 1998 are

asfollows
- - - In_!hawsandscfa‘follms ’
1999 ' $ 567
2000 - - . o) 506
~ 2001 - - 1,262.
2002 , , o - .2,592
2008 - ) ‘ . 550,458
, Thereafter , R %
, Total B . . 692120
Less interest accruing to principal (104,_277f),

S ‘ R " $ 587,843

The Company’s agreements with its lenders contain
‘financial and general covenants. These include, among .
_othe‘r things, limitations on borrowings, investmtents, and
asset djsposiil'olns and maintenance of vartous ﬁnan cial

ratos. Noncomphance with these or other covenams, or

the occurrence of any other event of deﬁiult, could result -

" ih the termination of existing credit agreements and the .
acceleration of debt owed by the Co'mpany and;its'
subsidiaries. At December 31, 1998, the Ooi‘npany was

in compliance with these covenants.

At December 31, 1998, the Company’s long-term debt
totaled $587.8 million and had an estimated fuir value of
$603.3 million, At December 31, 1997, the Company’s -

Jong-term debt totaled $456.7 million and'had an -

estimated fair value of $515.5 million, Generally, the fair
value of the Company's long-term debt is an estimate
based on quoted market prices, when available, or the .

discounted cash flow, method. - ) -

P - o ‘ Johns Manvi{le/‘ll’

[}

Note8: ‘ . ‘ - ol

Commitments and Contingencies = o

- -

' /
Total rental expense related to continuing operations

~ was $14 million in 1998, $12.5 million in ]997 and -

$119 mllllon in 1996. g

~- .

At December 31, 1998, minimum rental commm'nems of

' the Company under long-term, noncancelable operaung '

-

leases are as follows:

Lo

. * i thousands of dollars
1999 - : ' .8.4374

2000 ' S , 3906 , . -
boot ) 3,505 ' :

2002 T . T 3T

2003 T 2927 - _ .
Thereafter - i o ) .4 1,050 .

. -

$195%6  °

and, purchases in the drdinary conduct of busmess

7 The Company has various commitments for sales ) w . -

In the aggregate, such commitinents do not differ
significantly from current market prices or antcipated - -
usage requirements. :



Contlngent Product Liability
Between: 1988 and 1992, the 'Company manufactured
phenohc rooﬁng insulation which may, under certain

* circumstances, contribute to the corrosion of metal decks

on which it 1s installed: Subsequently, the Company.began - ‘

a volantary program to‘inspect such metal decks and -
remediate where appropriate. The'Company has accrued
for costs relating 1& furure inspections, remediation

and anticipated claims. These accruals are based on the ~

Company’s historical experience regarding the incidence

of corrosion and the cost of remediation and include a-

* number of assumptions related to the types of roofs on

* which phenolic insulation has been installed as well as

the assumption that the Company’s past ) remediation
experience will continue over the remaining lives of rooﬁ; .

insulated with the Company s phenohc rooﬂng 1nsulat10n

- Pursuant to reimbursement agreements with the
Company' s liability carriers and former owner of the

phenohc rooﬁng msu]auon business, the Company has

been reimbursed for a pomon of historical costs incurred -

. and is’entitled to receive reimbursement for a substantial

pomon of future costs to be incurred by the Compa.ny for

lnspecuon and remedlanon

In 1996 the Company and a thlrd party were named as
defenda.nts in two class action cases, now consolldated
ﬁ]ed in U.S. District Court in Boston, Massachusetts. The
plamtlﬂ's purport to represent all buﬂdmg owners in t.he _
'U.S. with phenolic insulation installed on their roof decks
and seek damages and anunctlve relief, including an order
requiring the removal and replacemem of the phenohc

insulation and remediation of any deck corrosion, The

Company intends to defend these allegations vigorously.

- ¢

.

~The Company has reviewed uts historical inspection and

. remediation experlence and the terms and collectibility

of amounts under the reimbursement agreements in light
of the connngencnes described above Basedonthe .

mfonnanon available to date a.nd sub_]ect to the assumpUOns ‘

: descnbed above if additional costs are mcurred in excess

of the accmed amounts, such costs are not expected to
‘have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial )
condition, liguidity or results of operations.

Environmentat Contmgenmee

~*At December 31, 1998, the Company had remechauon
actvities in progress at four sites, out of a total of 16 such
sites for which the Company has identified envn*onmenta]

conditions requiring remediation. In.addition, the

. Company has been identified as a potenua.l]y re5pon51ble

party at 14'non-Company owned or operated sites under

" the federal Comprehensive Environmental Reéponse,

Compensation and Liability Act (*CERCLA”) or similar
state leglslauon Of these 14 sites, the Company’s potential
liability for ten sites will be determined pursuant-to the
settlement agreement descnbed in the following paragraph.

. Threé of the sltes may not be subject to the settlement

-agreerment a.nd accordingly, the Compa.ny could be _]Olntly

) and severally liable for costs of remediating these sites. At

one of the sites, only part of the liability will be determined _
by the setdement agreemient with the rest of the hablhty
being the subject of a U.S. Environmental Protection

Agency (“E_PA”) de minimis settlement offen

In 1994, the US. gover-nment and the Company settled '
certain litgation concerning the Company’s disposal ’
activities prior to consummation of its plan of )
_reorgan‘izaiion. The settlement agreement, which was-
made a court order, limits the Company’s future liability
under both CERCLA-and the Resource Gonservauon and
Recovery Act (“RCRA") o 55 pereent of its share of
site-wide response costs and natural resources’ damages
without regard to joint and several liability for dlsposals

made by the Company prior to consummation of the

Johns Manville/42 - . - . -
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‘Company’s plan of reorganization. The agreement
resolved the Company’s liability at certain historical sites
and also covers CERCLA and RCRA liability for other =
diéposal sites at which _the- EPA has incurred or may incur
response costs and which were used by the Company prior
to consummation of the plan of reorgahiza;ien..The
agreemen‘t provides that the amount the Company will be
oiz)ligated ) pay; in the aggregate, for such sites shall
never exceed $850 000 during any gwen year. The EPA |
“and othen; from time to time commence cleanup '
acuwues at such sites and in the future ‘the EPA and
0[hers may assert claims against the Company with respect
to such sites. The Company believes that all such activities

and claims, if any, will be subject to the agreement.

At December 31, 1998 and 1997, tllle Compan}";s balance.‘ -
) sheet included undiscounted accruals for environmental .
remediation costs, lnclud.mg ongomg compliance, p
~ mainterance and monitoring costs, of $34.8 million and
$36.5 million, respectively. The Compa.ny paid $1.7 million
and $1.3 million for environmental cleanup in 1998 and
1997, resApeEtiver.'Except for certain one-time costs’
(related to'the nonrecurring charges discussed in Note 15)
. expected 10 be incurred in 1999 and 2000 ttaling
$12.9 million, the Company believes that amounts paid in
1998 and 1997 are representaIJve of the Company’s future
- anmial environmental cl eanup costs and anticipates -
expenditures relaung to costs currenﬂy accrued to be

made over- [he next 15 yeals

- Asa Lresult of fae_tors such as changes in federal-and state

_ regulations, the application and effectiveness of remedial

. aeu'ons; the djﬁicnmy in assessing the extent of environmental
cqntanﬁnaﬁon: and the allocation of costs among pOLeanaﬂ};
responsibie parties; actual c'dsts to be incurred for .
envlronmental cleanup may vary from previous eSUmales
'Suty ect to the uncertainties inherent in evaluating
environmental exposures, and pased on informadon
presently available, including the Company’s historical
remediation experience, cufrenﬂy enacted environmental B
laws and regulations; and existing remediation tec hnology,
thet(fompany believes that if additional costs are incurred
in excess of the accrued :;\mounts, s$uch costs are not *
expected to have a material adverse effect on the Gé,mpany?s

financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

.

Note 9:

. Stockholders’ Equity

During 1998, the Company purchased 3.6 million shares

~

of its common stock from the Trust at.$13 per sh_are, ~
and accordingly, recognized treasury stock, at cost, of
$4ﬁ.8 million. . LN . -

During 1996, ;\ﬁproximat'ély 32.5 million shares of the

" Company's common stock were issued under the profit

“sharing exchange (see Note 17). In addition, warrants were

exercised 1o purchase 6.9 million shares of common stock
during. 1996, The Company declared and paid a'special -
cash dividend to all common stockholders during 1996

of $6.00 per share, totaling 3968.1\ million, representing

a substantial portion of the proceeds from the disposition

_of Riverwood Intefnational Corporation (“Riverwood"}

(see Note 19).

4 .

The Company redeemed its 9.2 million sharés of

" cumulative Preference Stock, Series B, in 1996 with cash

’
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of $230.8 million. The premium, or exces§ of the
redempuon pnce over the carrying value of the
preference stock, of $52.1 million was charged directly to -

capital in excess of par value and, along with preference

‘stock dividends, was deducted from net incomie to

compute earnings and eaming; per share applicable 1o

common stockholders. Preference stock dividends pa.ld

_in 1996 totaled $10 3 mll]lOn
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NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a The following is a summary of shares oufstanding;

.

Common

Stock Compensation Plans
The Company’s stock compensation plans grant eligible-
employees deferred stock rights and opuons to purchase
shares of the Company s common stock. Dunng 1996, an
additional 7.9 mllhon shares of the Company’s common

“stock were reglstered and reserved for issuance, On

July 1, 1997, the Company introduced a noncompensatory ‘

Johns Manville employee stock ownership plan for its
worldwide employees. The plan enables employees to

purchase stock direcdy from the market and through =~ %
B ' ’ -

Company savings plans. In addition, the Company granted

approximately 1.6 million options to employees at

. $12.19 per share. These options vest through July 1, 2002

) and expire on December 31, 2005‘. In connection with

the noncompensatory plan, the Combany has registered
and reserved for issuance, 5.3 million shares of its '
common stock. At December 31, 1998 approximately

6 million shares were ava.llable for issuance under stock

compen.sauon and noncOmpe nsatory plans .

~
- equivalents, but no voting rights prior to vesung, and are

" $13.28 per share; 128,000 deferred stock rights were issued
" ata weighted average marketvalue at grant date of )
" $11.36 per share; and-1.1 million deferred stock rights were
T lssued ata welghted average market value at grant date

“vesting through December 31, 2000.

- . . N o . Swock
Balance at December 31, 1995 . . S " 122,785,753
Issuance of common stock in connecuon with cornpensanon plans o . 325504 7
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of warrants N o © 6,892,988
Treasury stock acqmred ’ ) . ' '( 1,035,425)
Issuance of common stock in connection with the profit shanng exchange- ' 32,527,110
Balance at December 31, 1996 < . ‘ 161,495,930

. Issuance of common stdck in connection with compensauon plans e - - o 109,964 °
Treasury stock acqunred ' (25,305}
Balance at. December 31, 1997 . o . . - 161,580, 589 '
Issuance of common stock in"connection with cornpensanon plans " ’ . 1,022,942 '
Treasury.stock acquired ’ - . . (3,605,014)
Balance at December 31,1998 . - ot . 158,997,817 -
Note 10: . * The amount of compensation expense recogriized for

: stock-based COmpEnsanon was $6.2 million, $2.7 million’

and $2.8 million for the years ended December 31, 1998; ce T

-1997. and 1996, respectively.

A

Deferred Stock o
Deferred stock rights entitle participants to the rece1pt .

- of shares of commion stock upon vesting and dividend

restricted as to disposition and are subject to forfeiture |

prior to vesting upon certain circumstances. During 1998, —
1997 and 1996, 50,046 deferred stock rights were issued
ata weighted average market value at grant date of

of $10.48 per share, respccuvely At December 31, 1998, B
432,042 deferred stock rlghls were Outstand.lng, wn.h




- Stock Options ' -
"The Company apphes APB Opinion 25 and related
mterpretatlons in accounting “for its fixed stock opuons
Statemem of Financial Accoummg Standards No. 123,
. ‘Accournmg for Stock-Based Compensauon (“SFAS
' « No. 123") was issued in 1995, and if fully adopted, changes,

-among other things, the methods for recognition of

expensé on the Company’s plans mmlﬁng stock options. ..
“The Company’s common stock 0pti0n§ were granted
-at éxercisp pﬁces'equal to, or in excess of, market prices

" on the grant dates, and therefore no compensation cost

¢ - \-

The weighted avera.ge Fait values of. options gra.med is as

f0110ws . o
E)_(ercisé: price Exercise price
¢ equal to market exceeds market
. . - - "ongrant date - on grant date .
1998 $441 " 8338 .
1997. - $384 $2.381 '
1996 . “$3.02 $2.711

. -

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock 0pu'0n
plans as of December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 is -

was recognized. The substantial majority of the options, ~ presemed below: ' . e .
. other than those granted during 1997 undet the . - :
". ‘noncompémnsatory plan, vested by December 31, 1997 " - - . B
" with the remainder vesting through December 10, 2001, N ) -
] ‘These options expire between December 31, 2005 and -
’ December 10, 2008. A -
P - ;
' ) R 1998 . C 1997 1996
’ “ Weighted ) Weighted ~ o Weighted  ~ ’
- Average Average Average - W
. - Exercise » - - Exercise - Exercise Johms Mamvie
. - _’ _ Shares - Price Shares Price Shares _ Price -
Outstanding at'Beginning of Year 6,981,862,  $11.76 5,235,225 $11.51 548,900 $ 9.00 )
" Granted T . .1,051,861 - $15.01--. 2,234,205 $1229 - 5,260,440 $11.69
Exercised =~ ! (811,958) $10.61 T (44,242) $ 8.62 (252,800) $ 714
Forfeited S {170,848} - $12.18 " (443,416) $11.70 (821,315) $ 7.56
‘Outstanding at End of Year 7050916  $1237 . 6,981,862 $1176 59235225 " $1151 _
" Options Exercisable at End of Year = 4,327,708 4,685,108 - - © 207,515 -
The following table summarizes informatonaboutstock ~ * -, . L. -
. options outstanding at December-31, 1998 i ) ' . 4 -
- ~ L) = ) ) N
o . Options Outstanding ~ Options Exercisable o '
; | Weighted Average : ; - ’ ’ : '
“ Rangeof Number . Remaining- Weighted Average - Number " Weighted Average - .. | )
Exercise Prices |,  Ousstanding - Contractual Life 'Exercise Price Exercisable - Exercise Price” Y.
- $ 400 - 35,000 6.3 years B $ 4.00 35,000 . $ 4.00
.- $ 0.88514.60 6046149 o 6.3 vears $11.92. 4,265,235 | $11.81 f
$14.70-$20.39 - 969,767 + 9.4 years $15.46 97,473 . $15.31
77,080,916 | 6.8 years $12.37 4,327,708 $11.77
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Deceinber 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996 would have been

" NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=" . No.123is optional. However, had compensation cost been
" determined based ori the fair value at grant dates for stock
option awards consistent with SFAS No. 123, the Company’s

.- net income and earnings per share for the years ended

- - -
.

Recognition of compensation expense under SFAS” The pro forma compensaton expense

1

Black-Scholes gption-pricing model. The weighted average
- f - R

based on the fair .

value of the options is estimated on the grant date ﬁsing the ‘

* assumptions used for options granted are as follows:

[}

. '. _- Pro forma $1.1 “$.80 -

and additional awards in future years are possible.

The effects of applying SFAS No. 123 in this pro forma

\ +  disclosure are not necessarily indicative of furure amounts

=~ computation further includes all dilutive potential common

_ the following common equivalent shares:

.

€arnings per common share amounts are determined using

reduced to the fo]qu\‘ring pro forma amounts: 1998 1997 - 1996
‘ ' L Dividend yield pershare . $0.24  $0.16% $0.12 -
IR thousands of dollars, except per share amounts . Expected volatility - 36.1%  314%  32.0% )
B 1998 . 1997 199 Risk free rate of retun 45%  63%  66%
i Net income applicable to - " Expected life of options ' - ‘
- . common stock: y - ) e in years ‘ . 39 45 4.0
-+ Asreported $180,946 . $150,000 $30,145 - o~ -
- Proforma- , . $179406 $144,476 $25926
L Basic earnings per shareé ' . S Note 11: . «
- . Asreported $1.13 593+ §20 .Earnings per Common Share .
Pro forma $1.12 - $.89 $.17 - o -
- Diluted earnings per sharfa: . . o * Basic earnings per common shﬁre amounts are based-on
-Asreported. 112, -$.92 g?g " the weighted average number of }_:ormnr;)r-1 shares oﬁtsfandjng

during the year. The diluted earnings per common share - .

shares outstanding during the yeat. The basic and diluted .

" Dilutive potental common shares: .o
Stock options, deferred’stock )

- e © 1988 - 1997 T 1006
) ’ . Basic . Diluted * Basic . Diluted Basic Diluted .
" Common stock . 163,822,000 - 163,822,000 . 162,768,000 162,768,000© 152,201,000 152,201,000

, ~

L ~  rights and warrants. T © . - 1,895,000 . 1,594,000

1,208,000 -
1000)  (871,000) - -

Treasury stock _ - (3,799,000} (3,799,000}  (1,226,000) (1,226,000 (87
B : 160,023,000 161,918,000

161,542,000 163,136,000 151,330,000 152,558,000 - -

- Stock options to purchase 1 million, 2.3 milfioh and
- 2 million-common shares in 1998, 1997 and 1996, -

. . . respectively, were not intluded in the computation of

o

-

diluted earnings per common share because the stock

- options’ exercise prices were greater than the average

.7 market price of the common shares.

2

d



The basic and diluted earings per cominon share amounts are

determined using the following income amounts: _

- - ) ] : . _ ' - In thousands of dollars -
_ . ' T " 1998 1997 - 1996
~ Income from Continuing Operations - T 8185291 $130520  $ 190525 :
- Preference Stock Redempiion Premium/Dividends . : ) ' : T {60,341}
R . S 185,291 130520  -130,184 -
Gain on Disposal of Discontinued Operations, net of tax * - - 19471.° 216,246
_Ihcor_né before Extraordinary Losses and Cﬁmulatiyé Effect of Accounting Change - 185,291 150,006 346,430 o
Extraordinary Losses ) : . - {31,754} ] (316,285) -
Cumnulative Effect of Accounting Change . L - © 27,409 ) ‘ .
Net Income Applicable to Common Stock * _ ’ l ' $180,946. $150,000 % 30,'1{15‘ Co

N ]

Pursuant to SFAS No. 132, “E_lmplojers' Disclosures about -

Note 12; i ‘
" Pensions o o Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits,” the status of
' i . - the Company’s s defined benefit plans as of December 31
U.S. Pension Plans * are as follows: )
The Company’s pension income related to the _
U.S. defined benefit pension plans, exclusive of amounts a * In thousands of dollars
related to dlsconunued operations, for the years ended A 1998 - ° 1997 W
December 31 consists of thie following:. _ Change in Projected Benefit Obligation fompae
. . . Benefit obligauon ) ' T
\ : In thousands of dollars - at beginning of year - $641560 § 63i,941
] 1998 . 1997 1996 Service cost .o 7,985 7,399
Service cost $ 7985 5 759 § 827 Interest cost + 46158 45254
Interest cost 46,158 . 45,254 44,480 Amendments . E . 193 870 ,
Expectgéd_retum on . ) . B A_ct_um‘ial (gains) losses _ “27,644 (5,437) ’
plan assets . {64,330)  (54903)  (52,946) Benefits paid ‘ {51,343}  (38,467)
Amortization of : . Benefit obligaton | S .
prior service cost - 1,632 1,545 1_,441 : at end of year , $673,997 $641,560
f‘_‘“o"ﬁf"’.‘jo'? of - . - Change in Plan Assets T . : '
R m‘,tlo: mour,l;].l‘ (,8'1.65 b (S’igé) (2’2?? Fair value of plan assets s C ) '
Ts;ig..izioic:ssme Os; 16,720) $ ©740) § (35%) at beginning of year _ $741,007 - §691,592
A : : d . * Actual retum on plan assets (22,303} . 87480
' . . Employer contributions 16 402
Assumptlons used in detﬁnmnmg the pensmn 1ncome for Benefits paid . (51;343) (38,467)
the years ended December 31 are as follows: - Fair value of plan assets A . o
, at end of year '$667,377 " $741,007
o~ . 1998 1997 1996 Reconciliation of Funded Status . )
Discount rates 7150%  7.50% . 7.00% Funded status - - $ (66200 § 99,447 =
Rates of increase in future . ' . - Unrecognized net actuarial loss 144,490 30,213 .
compensation levels 550% 550%  5.50% Unrecognized prior service cost 11 870 11,509
‘ Expected long-térm rates R Unrecognized transition amount (3,848) (12,013) T
of return on assets T 900%  825% 800% Prepaid peision asset $145,892° ° $129,156
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Service cost -

determined in 1998 and 1997 using discount rates of
" 7 percent and 7.5 percent, respectively, and rates of

increase in future compensation le\els for salary-related

fr.

plans of 4.5 percent and 5.5 percent, respectively.

" German Pension Plan )

The pension expense, determined using a dlSC()unt

rate of 7 percent for each year and a rate of increase in.
future compensation of 4 percem for 1998 and 5 percent
for 1997 and 1996, for the years ended December 31

con51sts of the following: .

In thousands of dellars
1998 1997 1696
$ 665 % K567 $ 881

v

Interest cost

Axnorﬁzaﬁon of .
transiion amount . . 14 1Q6 - 126

Recognized actuarial gain (134) (140 " @n

Total pension expense

-

The prqjected benefit ob_lig:;lu"ohs for the U.S. plans were

*1,727 . 1529 1861

$2372 §$2062 $2,847

.
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The status of the Company s unfunded German plan as of

December 31 is as follom

-

In thousands of dollars -

. ‘ . ' 1998 1997

Change in Projected Benefit Ob[igation
Benefit obligation ‘ -
at beginning of year $ 23421 ° $ 28204
- Service cost " . '665 . 567
Interest cost - 1727 1,529
" Actuarial gains ' (16} - (1,790)
‘Foreign currency exchange . :

. rate changes . - 1,857 T (4,063)
Benefispaid . _ (1170).  (1,026)
Benefit obligation ) ) .
 at end of year $ 26484 § 23421
Reconciliation of Funded Status -~ -

Funded status $(26,484) $(23421)
Unrecognized netactuarial loss ~  (4,363). ©  (4,183) .
Unrecognized transition amount 570 633 -
Pension obligation " $(30277)  $(26971)

Projected t;eneﬁt 6b1ig€1tions were determined using a
discount rate of 7 percent for both 1998 and 1997. -

The rate &f increase in fuiture compensation levels for
salary-related plans was 4 percent in 1998 and 1997.
Pension exp;anse (income) and lprqjécted benefit
obllgaﬂons under each of these plans are ‘determined using
assumptions regarding dlscount rates, rates of increase in
future’ compensation levels and expected long-term rates

of return on assets. These assumpu’dns are subject to

prevailing economic conditons and, accordingly, the .

Company believes it is reasonably possible that a change

_in these assumptions may occur in the near-term.

AVqu.nta,ry Savings Plans ,
*. The Company provides voluntary savings plans in which

eligible U.S. employees of the Company may pardcipate.
Employees may make conmbunons of up to 16 percent
of their compensation. The Company matches up to six

percent of certain contributions at rates ranging froin

. 15 percent to 100 pe;—cent, dépending on the Compariy's

" performance. €ompany contributions to the savings plans

were $3.8 million in 1998, $7.1 million in 1997 and .
$75millionin1996. :

L4 1
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Note 13: - : o
Other Postretlrement Benefits

Medlcal and life insurance coverage is Ijl:OVided to

eligible U.S. and Canadian retirees of the Company -
and their dependents under defined benefit I-)la.ns.

The postretirement benefit expense for the yea;rs

‘ ended December 31 consists of the following:

. In thousands of dolilars
N, . 1998 1997 1596
$ 1530 $ 1,390 $ 1,373

.

Service cost
Interest cost
Amortization of
prior service cost
Amortization of
actuarial loss - 185 1698 234

Total postretireiment
benefit expense .

\ (1,838) (1,338) . (1,838)

 $13,365 $12,960 $12,724

The postretirement benefit expense was caleulated using
a discount rate of 7.5 percent in 1998 and 1997, and

7 percent in 1996.

+ The Company’s unfunded postretir'emem benefit
obligaﬁon reconciled with the amounts shown in the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet, pursuant to SFAS
No. 132, as of December 31, is as follows: ’

- ’ In thousands of dollars

‘ 1998 1997 .
Change in Postretirement Obligation
Beginning benefit obligation . *$ 188,831 § 184,981
 Service cost ' 1530° . 1,390
Interest Cost . 13488 .13,210

. Actuarial losses 16,173 * 2,988

Foreign currency exchange . -
_ rate changes . _ © 1435) {260)
Benefits paid {15,387) (18,478)

Ending benefit obligation $ 204,200 ' § 188,831
Reconciliation of Funded Status

Fundedstatus . $(204,200} $(188,831)
Unrecognized net '
actuarial gain (loss) ©~ - 9,172 (6,381)
Unreco'gnized prior service cost  {22,700) (24,538) ;
Fourth quarter benefits paid 10,057 4,492
Postretirement benefit N -
obligation ) ${207,671) §(215258)

13488 13210 12955 -

.-

. reasonably possible that a change in these assumptions may
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The current portions of $20.7 million and $i7._8 million of
the poslrel:iremeni benefit obligation are reflected in . - \
compensation and employee benefits as of Décember 31,

1998 and 1997, respectively. The accumilated -

.postretirement benefir obligations were determmed in 1998

and 1997 using discount rates of 7 percent and 7.5 percent,

" respectively. The Company utilizes a discount rate based on

available ‘high-qua‘]ity corporate bonds. For measurement
purposes, a59 perceﬁt annual rate.of increase in the per
capita cost of covered medical benefits was assumed for
1999; the rate was assumed to decrease gradually o’

5.5 percent in 2002 and remain at that level mg-reaftﬁr.

" Assumed héalth care cost trend rates ha';'e a significant

e,fféct on the amounts reported for health care plans, . -
Increa'siﬁg the Va.rssmned health care cost trend rates by '

one percemage pomt in 1 each year would increase the

accurnulated benefit obllgauon as of December 31, 1998

by $8.3 million, and the aggregate of the service and

intérest cost components of the periodic cost for the year -
. then ended by $0.6 million. Meanwhile, decreasing the - ’
assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage ' : m
T Johas Marmvitie

point in éach year would decrease the accumudated benefit

- obligation as of December 31, 1998 by $7.8 million, and the -

* aggregate of the service :énd interest cost components of ;he '

periodic cost for the year then end&d by $0.6 million.

The Company’s assumptions regarding the discount rate

‘and annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered

medical benefits are subject to prevailing economic
conditions. Accordingly, the Company believes it is

‘occur in the nearterm.




'

T NOTESTO CONSOLIDATEQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14:
Workers’ Compensation ’

_ The workers’ compensation liability and related receivable

at gross and present val_ué at December 31 are:

I thowsands of dollars
1998 1997

VWorkers' Compensation Liability: -
T $112,069 .$117917
64,709 66,658

‘Gross
Present Value
Insurance Receivable;

Gross $ 7740 § 7572
Present Value = - : B 4,652 4,798
« - The liability and receivable were measured using

_risk-free discount rates of 5 percen{ and 6 percent at
December 31, 1998 and 1997, lespecu'vély, which reflect
rates of return on available U S, Treasury securities with
maturities si_i‘;lilaf to the timing of expected claim

~ payments. Although the Company is exposed to credit
losses in the event of nonperférmance by its insurers, '
the Compﬁny anticipates claims forinsurance coverage

" will be fully satisfied. s

Discount rates of 6 percent, 6.4 percent and 6.2 perceni

were used to measure expense for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

- - The Company expects to pay' the following amounts for its

workers’ compensation obligations:

#

. : . ' In thousands of dollars
; 11999 ' $ 7200
2000 : 7,200
2001 - 7,100
2002 7,000
2003 6,800
Thereafter ST 76,769
‘. $112,069 .
. )
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. The Company also 1"ecor'ded 1996 nonrecurring charges

Note 15:

- Nonrecurring Charges - -

In 1996, the Company recorded the following pretax. !

nonrecurring charges totaling $49.2 million,

The Company éompleted an evaluation of a manufacturing

- facility with both current and former operations and

determined that its best course of action was closure of the
facility. Consequently, the Company recorded nonrecurring

charges of $41.7 million for thé shutdown of current

' operations, demolition of faciliies and site restoration, of

which $30 million, $6.1 million and $5.6 million related to

corporate and eliminations, the Insulatdon s‘egmem and the’

Roofing Sysiems segment, respectively. Of these charges,

$7.5 million were noncash asset write-downs. At

December 31, 1998, $12 million of the remaining liability

of $37.3 million was classified as other current lixbilities. - oL

Upon completion of these actions, the Company intends to

di:_spose of the rema.iniﬁg properties .a.nd does not expect to

meur significant future monitoring and maintenance costs.
The Cbmpany expects to fund the charges requiring cash
outlays from available cash balances and cash generated ‘
from operations, Pending federal and state regulatory

agency approval, the final demolition is expectf:‘d to begin in
1999 and is expecied 1o be'substantially completed by 2000,
with the majority of liabilities settled during that time '
frame. Due in part to delays in obtaining these approvals,

the C‘o;npany spent minimal amounts in preparau’on for
demolition phz.ases of the project during 1998, The
nonrecurring charges are based on estimates and,

therefore, are subject to risks and uncertajntif:s related to

the Company’s ability to secure agreements with third

parties, krel‘inquish the pr(;perﬁes and obtain mgula‘tnrif -
approvals to execute the actions described above, As a result, -
the.Company believes it s reasonably possible that these
estimates may be revised in the nearterm. However, the - K
impacts of such revisions, if any, are not expected to have a

material adverse effect on the Company’s financial R
condition, liquidity or results of operations. )

-
~

(income) in the Insulation and the Engineered Products
segments of $11.5 million-and $(4) million, respectively,




consisting primarily of asset write-downs to estimated fair
values in the automotive molded parts business, which was

disposed of in 1997, and a gain on the sale of other

manufactunng assets ) .
‘Note 16: .o
. Other income (Expense), net
. Inthousands of dollary
, . 1998 _ 1997 199
Sale of mining roy_falty . $35,988 - ,‘
Amortization of .
intangible assets _ (13,425) $(10,516) ${4,528)

Interest accretion on ,

workers’ compensation

Tiabilities (2910) _ (3,072)  (3,567)
Pension and B » -
posiretirement benefits 59 ' (2,068)  (3,513)
Settlerhem of ' ) o ’ .
" pension plans - © 7216
Other’ 6189 5315 « 4,047

$25901 $(10,341) $ (345)

~

Peiision and postretirement benefits are.atiributable to
retirees of the Company’s former business operations.

Interest accretion on workers” compensation liabilities

'primarily relates to previous asbestos operations.

Note 17: P oo
Profit Sharing Obligation

+

. During 1996, the Company exchanged 'allpproximately

32.5 million shares of its common stock for the termmauon S

. ofthe Trust’s profit sharmg right to 20 percent ofthe =

* Company’s net earnings'(as adjusted). As a result, the

“Company recorded an extraordinary loss of $314.3 miltion,

net of taxes of $169.2 million. The extraordinary loss was

based on-the Nt_zW York Stock Exchange closing price of the .

Company’s common stock on April 4, 1996 of $14.50 per-
share, plus related expenses of the iransactiodAand other
trust related settlements. The.Company paid $6.6 million of
profit sharing expense through April 1996 to the Trust. This
represented the final profit shal_:ing pa)‘rme.nt to-the Trust.
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Note 18: . - o
income Taxes '

Income taxes payable consists of the ‘following:

' In thousands of dollars
o . 1998 1997
U.5. federal a.nd'forei'gn . ’
income taxes $15961 $8,300
- State and local taxes * 578 403
' e ’ $16539 . $8703
The approximate tax effect of thé temporary differences - .

_and carryforwards g;iving rise to the net deferred tax asset

is as follows;

. - -

L

In thosands of dollars - °
1998 1997 .

U.S. Deferred Tax Assets:

Trust deducuons S 208,822 $216,412 -

Employee benefit accruals 103,665 102,379 5
Other acerued labilites - 50,775  52370. Jm
. » Johuns Murrvitie
"Credit for prior year minimum . . .
* tax carryforward 21,39 20,871
Deferred compensau'c')n - © 9,106 5,839
Capitalized research, development. .
and engineering 6,334 7,239
Deferred state and local taxes 1,960 6,552
»General business credit ’ L -
canyfomrard 1,142 3,528 - T
Provision for- fumace rebuilds 9,625 .
Other x 12,020 13599
A A . 415415 438409 T
Foreign Deferred Tax Assets - 2262 ° 2547 ,
Total Deferred Tax Assets -~ . 417,667 440,956
U.5. Deferred Tax Liabilities: - e
Property, plént and equipment 109,440 - 100,695
Prepaid pension asset 51,138 44,658
Other 5874 . 6761
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities . 166,452 152,114
Net Deferred Tax Asset, before .
valuation allowances < 251,215 288,842 N
. Valuation Allowances (50,543)  (52,000)

$200,672 $236.342

Net Deferred Tax Asset * "

.
r
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The deferred tax asset related to Trust deductions ]
primarily represents common stock and Trust Bo:nds held -
by the Trust that are not yet deductible for income tax
purposes. The charge related to the Trust Bonds becomes
deductible as principal-and interest payments are made to
the"Trust, or when the Trust Bonds are sold by the‘Tmst,

* and funds are disu-ibute(.ilto claimants or deposited in a

- specific settdement fund. The deferred tax asset related to

Trust deductions includes $200.9 million (exclusive of any .

related valuation allowance) generated frdm the issuance

" of stock to the Trust. »

LY

The Company receives a tax deduction for the amountof -
any dividends paid on shares of the Company’s common
stock held by the Trust. In addition, the Company will
receive a tax deduction when the Trust sells some or all
of its shares of common stock and distributes the proceeds
to its beneficiaries or transfers the proceeds to a specific
- setdement fund. If the Trust were to sell the stock at a
price greater than the Company’s carrying value, the
Company may receive a tax benefit in excess of the .
deferred tax dsset reflected for financial réporting ,
purposes. Likewise, if the Trust were 1o sell-the stoc‘k ata
price lower than the carrying value, the Company would
receive a tax benefit less than the deferred tax asset
reflected for ﬁnancial"reporﬁng’purpqses.‘ C ,

A

Under Section 468B of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code,
the Company is responsible for income 1axes on thé
taxable income of the Trust’s specific setdement fund at
a@x mgé of 15 percent. Any such taxes paid by the
Company will generate a tax deduction for the Company. .
The -'Compan'y,cannot predict the amount of ar;y such
future tax obligadohs. However, relateél liabilides could
become materialin certain situations including the Trust
Iﬁpnetizjng, and retaining lhe‘procee-d:; of, a significant A
portion of its investment in the Company’s cofimon stock
or the settlement of this obligaﬁbn between the Company
and the Trust. During 1998, the Company incurred
approximately $3 million of these taxes, before any

U.S. federal or state benefit. I

- forecasts of future years' earnings and the estimated timing

- -

The Trust transferred approximately $69.2 million
and'$17.2 million in 1998 and 19?7, respectively, to the, .
specific settlement fund within the Trust or to claimants - '
generating corresponding current tax deductions for the -
Company. The cash taxes paid by the Company in the
U.S. were substantially lower than statutory rates due
to the Company’s deductions related to payments made
to the Trust, tax cred{t éarryfonvards and, in 1996, net
operaling loss carryforwards. ’ -
At December 31, 1998, the Company had a $50.5 million
valuation allowance on its U.S. deferred tax asset priﬁiarily .
related to future deducdble amounts that may not be
' realized. The 1997 valuation allowance reflected an
‘318.2 Iﬁillion decrease primarily due {o ‘the ualization of
general business credit canyfoniards that the Cornpany
previously believed would expire unused. In accdrdance
" with Statement of Financial Accbunu'ng Standards No. 109,
““Accounting for Income Taxes,” the Company’s valuation
allowance on all deferred tax assets is sﬁbject to change as
of the udlization of the Company’s tax beriefits and credit
caj;ryfoni:ards are revised (including the timing and
amounts received_by the Trust for its investment in
Company stock). ‘ ’ )

N . -

The approximate tax effect of the temporary differences

- giving rise to the net deferred tax liability is as follows: ™

In th'cmsan&.s of dollar,s
1998 1997
$ 2376 § 1942

Foreign Deferred Tax Assets
Foreign Deferred Tax Liabilities:

. Property, plant andc‘quipmgent 43,3‘27 41,772 l
Other . 2,976 2,345
Total Deferred Tax Liabilines 46,303 44117
$43927 $42,175

Net Deferred Tax Liability

—_— . ‘ Johns Manville/52 - B




The U.S. and foreign co_mponents,of income from The provision for income tax expense (benefit) on .

continuing operations before income taxes consistof continuing opemuons consists of the followmg
_ the following: ’ ’ : . N
' B e . ' In thousands of dollars .
In thousands ofdol:lars ' . ) 1998 . 1997 "° ° 199%
‘ : - 1998 1997 199 Current: -
Us. o $215427 $136277 $103491  US federat . = $25422 $12875 o
Foreign B 34,831 39203 47,943 _U.S.state and local 4530 2837 $ 38595 &
- . $250,258 $175480 $151,434 - " Foreign, 17,916 17618 24 492 ’ ’
- : - ' ' -47,868 33380 28,087
' Deferred: . : .
US. T 16,849 13044  (61,208)
. Foreign 250-  (1,473)  (5975)
. _ Co 17,089. 11571 (67,178)
. T © $64,967 - §44951 $(39,001)
The reported amount of income tax experlse on  result from applying the US federal statutory tax rate (o.
‘consolidated pretax income from continuing operatons ' consolidated pretax income from continuing operations
differs from the amount of income téx'expense that would for the following reasons:
Jn ti:m:.sand_s ofdollan‘" - W
. , _ 1998 - 1997 1996 e
) US. federal stamutory expense T s o $87,588 - $61.420 % 53,002
Increase (decrease) rebulung from: " . ’ S T P
Deducuon for shares of stock repurchased from the Trust . ‘ (12,0;15] v ’
Deduction for dividends to the Trust ' (8,795) . (6,208) . (107218)
3 U.S. state and local taxes, net of federal benefit * ’ 3600 . 1913 1,293
' AdJustment of estimated income tax expense for prior years - (3,352) . 8% ’
Foreign income taxes, net of credits ~ ~ , . ST : 451) - 8924 11,246
Utdlization of general business credits - . o ) ' . (18,188)
Other, net ' L ‘ © (1578) 185 2581 C
S > ‘ ‘ : $ 64,967 $44951 - § (39,001) -
- . ' -
" As of December 31, 1998, the Company had $1.1 million - Undjsrributed earnings intended to be, reinvested
of general business credit carryforwards and $21.4 mllhon .~ indefinitely by the foreign subsidiaries totaled _
of U.S. federatcredit for prior year minimum (ax $81.8 million at December 31, 1998. The determination
canyfonvards..’['he general business credits ekpire at " ofthe deferred tax liability related to these undistributed
- various dates beginning in 2002 There is no expiration earnings is not practicable. '

date on the prior year minimum tax credit; however, it can

Only be applred against regular tax. . . oo
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NOTES.TO CONSOLIDATED FINANE!A[ STATEMENTS

: ~—
Note 19;
Discontinued Operations -

During the third quarter of 3997, the Company adjusted
- .. the estimated gain récognized in 1996 on the disposition
) _of Riverwood. The-adjustment, resulting in an additional
net gain on disposal of discontinued operarions of
$19.5 milli10n, of wi'licl; 3(8.2 million related to income
taxes, arose from the ;resolmion of indemnification issues
with the purchaser of Riverwood and from the
determinaton of certain income tax consequences of the
disposiu'on, which were finalized with the completion of
the Company’s 1996 income tax returns.

! . " - . T
During 1996 the Com’pany received gross cash proceeds -
of $1.08 billion from the disposition of its 81.3.percent

interest in Riverwood and recorded a gain of $216 2 millién,

net of taxes of $138 7 m1ll1on

Note 20:-
Early Extinguishment of Debt

In Maly 1998, the Company répurcha.éed through a
cash tender offer substantially all of its Senior Notes
and recognized n extraordinary loss on the early
N ‘ ‘exﬁnguishment of debt of £31.8 million, net of taxes .
- of $18.1 miltion, in the second quarter of 1998. . -

- -

-During 1996, the cchlpany redeemed its 9 percent
- Sinking Fund Debentures with cash of §27.7 million
plus accrued interest of $1.6 million, resulting in an
\ extraordinary loss on early exﬁnguiéhment of debt.
of $2 million, net of taxes of $1.1 million.” '

' costs to rebuild fuinaces were credited to an‘q.llowanci:

Note 21: '~ .
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change S
Eﬁ'(;cﬁve]anualy 1, 1998, the Corﬁpgany changed its
method of accouhu’ng for glass furnace rebuild éosts
to the capitalization method from the allowance method.
Under the capitalization methed, costs to periodically
rebuild the refractory components of the giass furnaces

"are capitalized when incurred and depreciated on a

straightline basis over the eSUmated useful life of the

+ rebuild. The capitalization method provldes an-improved

measure of the_ Company’s capital investment and is

consistent with industry practice. Previously, estimated

" and charged to'opemtions over the estimated period to

the next rebuild date. The cumulitive effect of this change
in accounting principle increased 1998 earnings by

$27.4 million, net of taxes of $17.9 million. This changé
resulted in an increase in depreciation eéxpénse but - l

. eliminated the provision for furnace rebuilds. The pro

forma’ effect of T.hlS change on net income was not material.

Note 22.
Comprehensive Income

\Effective]anﬁary ll, 1998, the Company adopted Statement T

of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting
Comprehensive Income.” Comprehensive income
generally includes changes in separately reported
components of equity along with net income.

i . s -
Components of equity included in comprehensive income

were as follows:

8
Ky +

In thousands of dollars

] 1998 T 1997 1996 -
Foreign currency translation adjustments . - $(221 56) '$(28973) .. $(9,395)
Income tax benefit  _ . ; 9,970 . 11,689 3,382
Foreign curreicy translation adjustments, net of tax $(12,186)  $(17,384) - $(6,013)

[

»
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Note 23 . - The combined purchase price for these ac'quisit:ions,

Supplemental Cash Flow Informatton . accounted for under the purchase method, was

$92.2 million which was financed from existing cash

. In connéction with the consolidated statement of cash ' balancesand borrowmg under revolving credit,
' flows, cash paid for interest related to co;m'nuing ’ ) facilities. The excess of the combined pqrchase price
‘ operations during 1998, 1997 and 1996 was $33.9 mil-lioh, > over the estimated fair value of net assets acquired, or
$48 1 million and $45.9 million, respecuvely Cash paid goodwill, amounted to approximately $59 million. .
for incomé taxes related to continuing operations during Certain amounts of the purchase price allocation related
1998, 1997 and 1996 was $23.5 million, $48.7 mllhon and .- to preacquisition c;)ntingencies'and restructuring
$29.9 million, respecuvely : B R : decisions were based on preliminary estimates and may
' . be revised during 1999. ' T
~ . ) o ~ . . ' o =
Note2a: L o . . . _ : - .
Acquisitions .~ - . - Note 25: .‘ : ’
T _ . ST : Sﬁbséddent Event (Unaudited)..
In January 1998, the Company acquired the assets of a T . , N
Us. manufacturer of reinforced thermoplastc roofing On January i, 1999, the Company completed the
systems and also acquired a plant associated with the ‘ aéquisiu'on of Hoechst’s Spunbond /Monofilament
Insulation segment, which‘manufactures_calcium silicate ~ ~ operations. This acquisition will expand existing product
" pipe and block insulation, and fireproof board. In - \ lines of the Company’s Fngineered Products segment in
May 1998, the Company acqu_ired Exeltherm, a Canadian . North Ar_herica ?pd Europe. The cash paymer;t for this _ W
producer of polyisocyanurate foam products for - ) acquisition to be accounted for under the purchase et u‘_‘m )
commercial /industrial roofing and residemia.l - _ ' ~ method, will be $227 3 million (subject to certain
construction. Also in May 1998, the Company acquj-red ‘ post—closmg ad_lustmems) financed with borrowings from
B Skandinaviska]ﬁte, which-owns Tassf) AB, a Furopean - the Company s credit facilities. The acquisition borromngs,
_manufacturer of fiber glass wall coverings. Thxs ficqui'sition - drawn during December 1998, are shown as the acq}.ﬁsition }
* is associated with businesses of the Engineered Products’ deposit on the Company’s balance sheet. The allocation of . -
segmént In December 1998, the Comp‘any acquired the ' the purchase price will be ﬁnahzed during 1999 upon
assets of a U.S. manufacturer of commercial/industrial ‘ compleuon of asset valuations and determmauon of
rooﬁng 1nsu.lat10n products Also in December 1998, the ’ preacqmsmon contingencies and restructuring decisions.
Company entered into a joint venture to clevelop, )
- manufacture and market products used to stop the -5pread - Based on prehm.mzuy est1mates, the cash paymen[ has been
of fires in new and exmung buildings. This joint venture is* allocated as follows: - o
assocnated with businiesses of the Insulation segment. ~ - - - ) - o .
i - ) - C - In millions of dollars
' T ) \’ . Current Assets . ' $ 80
: * Noncurrent Asscts (including Goodwill) 174
) . ‘ Liabilides Assumed . : (27)
N -

Cash Payment : ) $ 227°
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NOTES T0 CONSDLIDATED F‘IANAN'EIAL STATEMENTS

The, preliminary consolidated results of opefations on a
pro forma basis as if lhe'oi)erations had been acquired as
of the begmnmg of 1998 and 1997 are as follows:.

In millions of dollars, except per.shaw amounts

A 1998 - 1997
Net Sales , $2013 $1,898
Net Income . Cm L le2
Earnings per Share — Diluted - 1.18 1.0G-

The estimated pro forma informéation is presented for
informational purposes only and is not necessarily
indicatve of the results of operations that would have
occurred had the acquisidon been completed as of the
above dates, nor are they necessarily indicative of future

results of operations.

s

Note26: -
" New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activides.” This statement, eﬁ"éctive for all fiscal quarters pf
fiscal years begin\ni.ng after une 15, 1999, establishes -
accounting and reporting standards for derivative

* instruments anid for hedging actvides. It requires that the ;
Company recognize all deﬁ\aﬁ;ﬁes as either assets or liabilities

. in the statement of ﬁna.ncnal posmon and measure those.
instruments at fair mlue At this time, the Company cannot
determine the effects, 1f any, adopting this statement will have
on its financial condition, liquidity or results of opﬁraﬁ(;ns.
However, the Company does not expect a significant impact - -

on its results of operations.

Note 27: . . .

Business Segments and
Geographic Area Information

" The Company reports separately its dpemting results in the

following three principal business segments: Insulation,
Roofing Systems and Engineered Products. The Company’s
repoﬁable business segmients are strategic business units
organized by product. Effective January 1, 1998, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an -
Enterprise and Related Infornfation.” The Company
evaluates segment performance based on income from
oi)erations. Cpnsistentwitl{ the Company’s internal

reporting, business segments now include allocated

. corporate expenses. The 1998)1'111ning royalty sale f)rcx:eeds,

certain nonrecurring charges and a‘pens_ion settlement gain
rel_atéd 1o 1996, are reported in corporate and ehminations.
The 1997 and 1996 results were reclassified to conform with

the current presentatdon format.

The Insulatdon segment consists of the Company’s building

insulation business, which manufactures fiber glass wool

'insulatiqn for walls, attics and floors in résidenﬁa] and

" commergial buildings and polyisocyanurate foam she’athing

for residential structures; commercial /industrial msulat:on

‘ busmess, which manufactures pipe and duct insulation for

" use in commercial blu]d.mgs, factories, refineries and other

industrial applicatons; and onginal equipment
manufacturers {(“OEM") insulation business, which

. manufactures thermal and acoustic insulation for aircraft,

marine vessels, automobiles and heating, ventilating and air
condidoning (*"HVAC”) and other equipment.

The Roofing Systems segment consists of the Company’s

.. commercial /industrial roofing systems business, which

supplies builtup, modified bitumen and single-ply
membranes; perlite, fiber glass and polyisocyanurate

. insulations; roof guarantees; and accessories.
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The Engineered Products segment consists of the
 Company's mats and fibers business, which manufactures
continuous filament ﬁbe-r glass-hased products used for
reinforcing roofing, flooring, wall covering a.n-d‘plastic .

products. The mats and fibers business includes the
Company’s German §'ubsidialy, Schuller GmbH, and the

Company’s European fabrics businesses. The Engineered

Products segment also includes ﬂle\COmpa.py’s filtration

business, which manufactures filration media for

_ commercial aljl-d industrial buildings; ulra-fine fibers for

clean room air filters and battery separators; liquid

filtration cartridges and media for use in commercial and

" industrial applicati;:ahs; and synthetic meltblown products

used in various other applicadons.

;

. ) In thousands of dol}an

December 31, o .- 1998 1997 1996
. Operating Assets (Note B} ' ’

Insulation : - - .$ 512428 § 467828 . § 506934

Roofing Systenss . ° e ) ’ i 429,342 268,051 . 327518

Engineered Products ) 591,839 B51517 449,482

Corporate (39,216) (46,756) (57,219)

Total | - L $1,494,393  $1340,640 = $1,296,715
- Years Ended December 31, '

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization
Insulation _ R

Roofing Systems  ~ _
Engineered Products

$ 36146 $ 34031 $ 3176l
. 17,624 16,197 12,320
40041 . 2993 27,094

Total ) ; $ .93811 $ 80163
Additions to Long-lived Assets (Not E} . ‘
Insulation - o ) . A % 65216 $ 34,687 $ 32531
'Roofing Systems L ~ 7 25,154 7,945 " 51,650
) Engineered Products 37,803 - 81715 " 68,462
Corporate 2,163 049 © 857
Total $.130336 $ 125206. $ 153,000
See notes on page 60. : ' ' :
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- ) . In thotisands of dollars

Yéars Ended December 81, . ' T 1998 1997 1996
Insulation - - . L '
Net Sales $ 731,087 .$ 694606 $ 697,325
Intersegment Net Sales : . 3,004 3,230 1,629

" Costs and-Expenses - ’ g ‘ , 619,973 611,195 589,632
Nonrecurring Charges ) . ' N . 17,550
Other Income {Expense), net 3,864 t??) - 1,096
Income from Opérations i $ - 117,982 $ 86573 $ 92868

" Roofing Systems . i . -
Net Sales - "$ 561,787 § 510460 - § 414,013
Costs and Expenses 506,127 457,108 383,983
Nonreauring Charges - ' S S . : e . 5,644 ’
Other Income (Expense), net (7,618} (2,841) " © . (2,649) .
Income from Operations ' $ .48042  $ 50511 $ 21,737
Engineered Products . o
Net Sales- '$ 488,305 $ 442579 $ 441,091
Intersegment Net Sales ~~ + ¢~ 25,843 33,375 29,670
Costs and Expenses - 432,648 393,589 380,499 -
Nonrecurring Charges (Income) . ' ,‘ ' {4,018)
Other Income (Expense), net . : - 13,775) (4,027) 1,331
Income from Operations $ 71725 ", $ 78338 $ 95611 -

 Corporate and Eliminations R o
Intersegment Net Sales (Note A) ’ o $ (28847) § (366l9) $ (31,299
Costs and Fxpenses, ‘ L . T (31,405) . (40,010) (38,613)
Nonrecurring bha;ges - - . . ) 29,980

" Other Income {Expense), net (Note D) 33,430 (8,396) (123)
Income from Operations ) ' . $ 35988 $ —>~ . $  (22,789)
Consolidated Total Company ’ , . o . -
Net Sales - ’ $1,781,179  $1,647645  $15524929
Costs and Expenses ' 1527343 1,421,882 1,315,501
Nenretﬁlﬁng Charges ) 49,156
“Other Income (Experise), net 25,901 (10,341) - (345)
Income from Operations ) - $'279737. $ 215422 § 187,427

#

NOTES 10 CONSOLIOATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

See notes'on page 60. - ¢
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Years Ended December 31 ;

1998

 In thousands of dollars -
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h 1997 - 1996
‘United States o .- 0 :
Net Sales - $ 1508096 | $1,426609  $1,341,216 - .
Costs and Expenses ’ 1,302,890  1,206560 1,109,647
Nonrecurring Charges o , 19,176
Other Income (Expense), net - ) 25,161 . {4,120) 9,863 N

. Income from Operations - o $ 230,367 § 215929 § 222256
Foreign ' - o )
Net Sales s 2:8M9  § 231758 0§ 2242% -

. Costs and Expenses | - 232,010 192,511 188770 .

Other Income (Expense), net ' - " (4,406) (1,140) 1,737
Income from Operations ' $ 42,003 $ 38107 § 37199 . ...
Corporate and Eiminations , ' . i )

- Net Sales (Note A) : .8 (5338 $ (10,722)~ §$ (13,019)

Costs and Expenses T (7557 - 22811 17,084
Nonrecurring Charges . o 29,980

Other Income (Expense), net (Note C) * 5146 (5,081) (11,945) .

Income from Operations $ 7367 § (38614) $ (72,028
Consolidated Total Company . . .

Net Sales RN $ 1,781,179 $1647645  $1562429 -

Costs and Expenses 1,527,343 1421882 1,315,501 m
Nonrecurring Charges : o 49,156 iohns Manville

_ Other Income (Expense), net 25901 (10,341) (345)

" Income from Operations 8 279737 § 215422 § 187427

December 31, 7 i T
Long-lived Assets ‘ - ;
United States - $ 679817 § 637638 $ 637,284
Foreign - 168,669 155,097 127,874
Corporate : 15,672 " 5,024 5,262
Total _ ' . $7864,158 § 797.759. § 770,420
'-Sremtes anpa-geéﬁ. N ~ C




. (B ) Operating assets primarily include amounts divectly assigneble -~

Nl]]ES_’TI] CONSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to Business Segments .
and Geographic Area Information:

/
[A) Net si]ex inclitded in corporate. and elzmzmztwm relate
frincipally to the elimination of intersegment and mt(rg?ogmphw
sales (at prices approximating market). Intersegment sales !

. Principally velate o sales from the Engineered Products segment to

the Roofing Systems segment. Intergeographic sales principally
relaté to insulation shipments from the U.S. -

1o each segment. These include trade receivables; inveniory

- (et standard cost); pooduwill; property, plant and equipment;

and capitalized software. Capitalized software tncluded in

operating assets was $10 million, $12 million and $14.7 million o
in 1998, 1997 and 1996, respectively. Corpordte operating assels ~
relate principally lo the adjustment of bwmm segment inventories -

toa LIFO ba.m

~— |

(C) Includes the elimination of intergeographic dividends between

the Company's foreign and U.S. segments.

’ (l?) Other income (expense), mt,vinqluded in corporate and

eliminations consisis of the mining royalty sale prroceeds in
1998, and certain nonvecurring charges and o pension
settlement gain in 1996. ‘

-
i

(E) Includes property, plan and equipment frurchases and
additions to property, plcmt and equipment from adquisitions.

Additions to property, ptcmt and equment from acquisitions
twere $24 million, $34.8 million a'nd 350 mallion in I 998,

1997 and 1996, respectively. . -

»

~
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WARAGEMENT'S REPORT o . g

4.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in co'nformity with genemlly
accepted accounting principles appropriate under the circumstances. T}fq representations in the finandial statements and the.
faimess and integrity of such statements are the responsibility of management. All of the other financial information in the .

Annual chorfangi Form 10K is consistent with that in the financial Statement:s. N . . .

.

Tile Company maintains internal accounﬁng control systems to provide reliable financial im"orma\tion for the pmpmaﬁon of

financial statements, to safeguard assets agamst loss or unauthorized use and o ensure proper authorization and accounting for

all wansactions. Management is responsible for maintenance of these systems, which is accomplished:through communication of -
established written codes of conduct, systems, policies and procedures; employee training; and appropriate delegation of

authority and segregation of responsibilities. To further ensure compliance with established standards and procedures, the - -
- “Company maintains a substantial program of internal audits. Oversight of management’s financial reporting and internal

accounting control responsibilities is exercised by thé Board of Directors, through an Audit Committee that consists solely of

outside directors. ~ . . ' : _ . .
CL. (Jerry) Henry © J.PMurphy - . - W
Chairman of the Board, L Senior Vice President and ) = . JetwsMamde
President and Chief Executive Officer -~ Chief Financial Officer : ’ .
N
- v
. - Al .
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BEPDRT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Stockholders and Directors ofjohns Manville Corporation:

In our oﬁinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income and
- compréhensive incomé and stockholders" equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
- posmon of Johns Manvﬂle Corporanon and its subsidiaries at December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of their
operatlons and their cash flows for each of the thrée years in the period ended December 31,1998, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. These financial staterfents are the responsibility of the Company’s management;
~ o our resp0n51b1hty is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits, We condricted our audits of
Lhese statements in accordance with generally accepted audmng standards which require that we plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonab]e assurance about whether the financial stalemems are free of matena] misstaternent. An audit

8

. . includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and dlsclosures in the fmanc:al statements, assessing
) the accounting principles used and significant estimates made bvy management and evaluating the overall financial

"statement presentation. We beheve that our audits. prov1de a reasonab]e basis for the oplmon expressed above,

T ‘ _PMMOU;_&_COO%;{ o P

Denver, Colorado
R January 29,1999 | .
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL OATA (unaucieay -

In theusands of doilars, except per share amounts

Sf:cond

- First Third Fourth -
. © Quarter Quarter "~ . Quarter Quarter, Total
Year Ended December 31, 1998 ’ , S - 7
NetSales . $380,336  $445,224 488232  $458,387 $1.781,179 ’
Gross Profit , 95,748 © 119,848 130,164 131,461 477,221
Income from Operations . 145,150 100,988 72,361 61,258 . 279,737 T
Income before Extraordinary Losses and - - - o
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change (Note A) 26,030 64,968' 50,671 - 43,629 185,291
Net Income (Notes A and B) | ) 53,439 « 33214, 50,671 43,622 180,946 .
. Basic Earnings Per Common Share h _ ' .
Income before Extraordinary Losses and -~ ’ - S -
. Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change (Note A) $16 - 341 o B32 $.27 $116
Net Incoriie (Not&sA andB) R T 21 .32 27 11% °
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share _ ' -
Income before Extraordinary Losses and . ' : -
. Cumulative Effect of Aé:;ou’nﬁng Change (Note A) ' $16 $.40 - $31, $.27 $1.15
Net Income (Notes A and B) | B 33 - .20 kI 112
Year Ended December 31, 1997 - ' _ - -
. Net Sales . ' $379,010 - $428,036  $438,192  $402477 $1647,645 “
Gross Profit’ ) : v 100,656 117,939 + 112,871 100,044 431,510
Income from Operations ' 49698 - 63,032 57,906 44,786 215,492
Income before Extraordinary Losses (Note C) 27492 3717 58829. 27,004 150,000
Net Income (Note C) ‘ 27,492 37,175 58,329 27,004 150,000 W
Basic Earnings Per Common Share T . . - - _ Johns Mamia
Income before Extraordinary Losses (No.!e C) $.17 $.23{ .‘$.36 $.17 $.93
Net Income (Note C) - . S07 - 9. . 36 .V 93
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share o ' '
Incoine before Extraordinary Losses (Note C) $17 %23 $.36 - $17° $.92
Net Income (Note C) : 17 . 23 . .36 N i 92
(A) In May 1998, the Company refinanced its $400 million (C) During the third quarter of 1997, an additional net gain _
of 10.875 percent Semm' Notes due 2004 (the “Sensor Notes™). qfﬁ']éj mallion was recognized, of which $8.2 million related .

~ $27.4 million, nei of taxes of $17. 9 million.

* The refinancing, amsmmg of a tender offer for cash, restulted

inan extmmdmmy loss on the early extinguishment of debt
of $31.8 million, net f taxes of $18.1 million, in the +
second quarter of 1998.

" (B) Effective January 1, 1998, the Company changed its method.

of accounting for glass furnace vebuild costs to-the capitalization

"~ method from the allowance method. The cumudative effect of this -

change in accounting principle increased 1998 net income by

. to income taxes, arising from the termination of certain

mdmnmﬁcanon obligations to the purchaser of Riverwood -
and from the determination of certain income tax consequences .

. of the 1996 disposition, which were fmalized with the completwn

of the Cmnpany s 1996 income tax returns,

’

“
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-~ BOARD DF DIRECTORS

Leo Benatar
. Associated Consultant
N AT Keamey, Inc.
Director since 1996 ‘
M. Benatar serves as Chairman of the
Health, Safety & Environment Committee
and is ¢ member of the Audit and ‘ - )

) .

Ernest H. Drew
Former Chief Egecuti\'fe Officer of.
the Industries and Technology Group
- Westinghou-se']:'.lectlicl Corporation
' Director since 1998 '
Drx. Drew is @ member of the Board
Omganiation & Operation, Compensation
and Health, Safety & Enviromment
Robert A. Falise
Chairman and Managi‘n_g Trustee

Marjvi!le Personal Injury -

r

Settdement Trust. .

Director éin(:t; 1992

Mr Falise serves as Chatirman of the
Esecutive Commitiee and is a member of the
Audit, Board Organization. & Operation,
Compensaiion and Finance Commilttees.

]

.

t

Todd Goodwin
General Parter )
Gibbons, Goodwin, van Amerongen

Director since 1991 -

My Goodwin serves as Chairman of the

Compensation Commitiee and is a member,
_of the Board Organization &5 Operation,

Executive and Finance Commmitiees.

I\ilichael N. Hammes

' Chairman and Chief

Execcutive Officer

Guide Corporation

Director since 1993 ,

Mr. Hegmmes is a wmember of the A:udit;
Compensation, Executive and Fingnce
Commitlees. ' ’

Kathryn Rudie Harrigan
Henry R. Kravis Professor of
-Business Leadership

. Columbia University
Graduate School of Business

Director since 1995
- e v

Ms. Harrigan is a member of the Finance

and Health, Safety & Environment
gmnmiueas.

Charles L.]Jerfy)_ Henry
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer |

Johns Manville Cor_-poraﬁon

. Director since 1996

M Hmryism}mzberoftheﬂoard

Organization. & Operation, Executive,
Finance and Health, Safety &
Envinmment Compmiltees.

.

- -

Y

~ LouisKlein, Jr.

Trustee

Manwille Personal Injury

Settiement Trust
. Director since 1992 _

My Klein serves as Cfmzrman of the
Audit Committee and is a member of the
Compensation and Finance Commitices.

[

Christian E. Markey, Jr:
Trustee -
Manville Personal Injury
Settlement Trust

Director since 1992-

judge_Ma@ serves as Chairman of

the Board Onganization & Operation .
Committer and is a member of the

Health, Safety & Environment Committee.

William E. Mayer *
Founder - -
Devqlopmeht Capital LLC. ~

Director since 1996

- Mr. Mayer serves as Chairman ‘oftfi.e

Finance Committee and is a member of the

 Audit, Board Organization & Operation.

and Executive Committees.




- CORBDRATE OFFICERS

.

William S. Bullock =~ - i . Kennath L. Jensen
Treasurer o Y Senior Vice President -
. . Corporate Development and i
ThomasL. Cattrider - Investor Relations -
. ~Senior Vice President . - L ) )
Insulation Group ' John J. Klocko, Il T '
' . ) Senior Vice President and . )
David S. Cope h " General Counsel N - o : o
Vice Président B - " ' T o
Taxés N ~ - Marvin Mitchell . ‘ '
. - Vice Pff;sidcnt and General Mar;ager . )
John A, Coppolé _ Engineered Products Division ;. ’ : ' )
Vice President -~ ’ - o > ' .
Research & Development John P Murphy =~ . t- ) .
‘ ' "~ - Senior Vice President and ’ . JA

‘ Paul E Hahmann . Chief Financial Officer
Vice President and Genéral Manager . . . o - -
Johns Manville Europe . .. Harvey L. Perry, Jr. o o ’

- - " Senior Vice President 3 : N
Ron L. Hammons Engineered Products Group - . o : ' - ’
Senior Vice President ' ' ! - ’ '7 . _
+ Human Resources and Purchasing - Dion Persson S - : m '
- : ' Vice President, Assistant - : R
' " Michael R. Harrison : General Counsel and Secretary .

Vice President and General Manager - i}
Commercial /Industrial Insulatons Mary K. Rhinehart

-

Vice President ‘ . ' .

Charles L. (Jerry) Henry L ., Corpofate Human Resources

Chairman of the Board, President’ ; S :

and Chief Executive Officer ] Bartley E. Roégensack, Jr; _

' " Vice President and General Manager
Roofin g Systems Group - ‘

. John M. Rosebery

.
- Controller

’
1
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

-

Securities Information
Johns Manville’s common stock is
. registered on the New York Stock
, Exchange, Inc. (symbol JM). Its stock-
- ‘also is traded ‘on the Bbston, Midwest,
g Pacific, and Philadelphia exchanges.
‘A two-year history of high and low  +
sales prices for the Company’s -
c¢ommon stock based on sales
transactions r_eportec:l by the: New York

Stock Exchange is provided below.
.- Comparative Common Stock Data
. . Market-prrices per share v
1998 : High Low
. L
' For the Quarters Ended: - )
March 31,7 - C18% 9%
June 30 16% 12% -
L September 30 17'%s 11%
December 31 16%s 10'%s
1997 . High Low
For the Quarters Ended: -
March'31 12% 10%
June 30 2% 9%
September 30 13%s 10
December 31 19%, 9% .

po-

Johns Manville Corporation
Corporate Headquarters

~ PO. Box 5108

Denver, Colorado 802 17-5108
(303) 9782000 .

- Street Address:

717 17th Street.  « -
Denver, Colorado 80202

Internet Address: '
http://wwwjm.com

Investor Relations Contact
Investor Relations ‘
P.O. Box 5108 . .
Denver, Colorado 80217-5108
(877) INSMNVL -
(877) 5676685

or (303) 9783117 -

»

Prociuc’t Information Center
(303) 9784900 or
(800) 6564-3103

" .- Fax: (303) 9782318

Transfer Agent and Régistrar
EquiServe Limited Partnership
First Chicago Division

P.O. Box 2500

" Jersey City, New Jersey 07303
- (201) 3241644 . - .

Hearing Impaired:

* Johns Manville Annual Meeting

April 23,1999 8:00am. -

Denver, Colorado

Annual Report and 10-K

To obtain a copy of Johns Marnille’s
,Annual Report, Form 10K or .

Onarterly Reports on Form 10-Q,

please call (877) [NSMNVL or

(877) 567-6685,
The Johns Manvilte Annual Report
is a publication of: \_]Qhr;s Manville
Corporation.

This annual report contains forward-

looking statements. Please see page 29

for a review of risk factors associated

" with these forward-ooking statements.

News Releases .

Johns Manville news releases,

" including eamings announcenents,
" - are available by fax by calling
(877) JNSMNVL or (877) 567-6685.

+

TDD: (201) 2224955 .

Internet Address:

e-mail: fete@em fenbd.com .-

hitp://www.ictc.com

Send shareholder _a“ddress.
changes to the above address for
EquiServe Limited Partnership . -
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Johns Manville
Market Positions

Commercial/industrial insulation

Commercial/industrial 7’00ﬁ-n.g systems

Nonwoven glass and polyester mals*
Building insulation

Aerospace insulation”

HVAC equipment insulation’

Aulo fiber glass insulation

Glass fabric for wall covering™

Ultra-fine fibers for air filtration~

* Nwth Ameitea

Johns Manville Corporation
717 17th Street Denver, CO 80202

#2
#1
#1
#1
#1

#1

#5 Worldeaire
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